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FOREWORD

Welcome to our Annual Report for 2017/18. It has been another really busy year
for us, with our staff working tirelessly to deliver high quality care. This annual
report provides an opportunity for us to reflect upon the many successes of the
year; we’ve got so much to be proud of. However, we have also faced some
significant challenges, particularly around our financial position and some of our
constitutional targets.

We have continued to experience ever increasing demand on our services and the pressures that this has brought to
bearhas meant that we have not always been able totreat our patientsinas timely manneraswe would like. We have
to pay testimony to our staff as they have maintained a strong focus upon delivering services of the highest quality for
patientsin the face of this challenge. We are very proud that 98.5% people that responded to our patient satisfaction
questionaire indicating that they would be likely or extemely likely to recommend our services to their friends and
family.

The financial climate continues to present unprecendented challenges for us and we came into the year having being
placed into Financial Special Measures (FSM) by our regulators at NHS Improvement (NHSI). This has meant that we
have been underintense scrutinyand have been working extremely hard to deliver our Financial Recovery Plan (FRP),
within which we had an incredibly challenging costimprovement target of £50m to deliver. Ourfinancial challenges will
continue throughout the coming year and we are so thankful to our staff for their continued efforts to deliver savings
and avoiding unnecessary spend.

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) have visited the Trust during the year and although our overal rating of Requires
Improvement remains unchanged, we are very pleased that the latest report acknowledges significant progress across
both of our hospital sites. We are now rated as ‘Outstanding’ for being caring; a reflection of the remarkable dedication
and compassion of our staff, ‘Good’ for our services being effective and wellled;inrecognition of the strong leadership
within our clinical managerial teams and ‘Requires Improvement’ for our services being responsive and safe;
acknowledging the effects of overcrowding and long waiting times in our emergency departments —all of which are
improvements on our previous ratings. We are proud of the work that we have undertaken to improve our ratings and
will continue to focus on improvement across the whole organisation over the coming year.

We have refreshed our 2025Vision during the year and launched our new values and strategic objectives at our Annual
General Meeting. Ourrefreshed 2025Vision provides us with a clear strategicdirectionforthe future and our values set
out the behaviours, attitudes and approaches that our staff will exhibit. Our Organisational and People Development
Team are supporting us to ensure that all staff ‘live our values’ in our day to day working lives.

We never cease to be humbled by the level of commitment, expertise and professionalism shown by so many of our
staff, and we want to build on this strong foundation to prepare us for the years ahead. Our commitment to you is to
build on our many achievements, reflect when we have fallen short of the ambitious goalswe have set ourselves and to

always put the healthcare needs of you and your family first.
Y

0 00aQ TG —
Paula Clark Stephen Burgin
Chief Executive Acting Chairman
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Part A: Performance Report

A1l. Statement of Purpose and Activities of the Organisation

University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust is one of the largest and most modern in
the country. In our state of the art facilities, we serve around three million people and
we’re highly regarded for our quality, teaching and research. We have around 1, 450
inpatient beds across our sites in Stoke-on-Trent and Stafford.

We provide a full range of general acute hospital services for Royal Stoke University Hospital
approximately 900,000 people locally in Staffordshire, South Cheshire
and Shropshire. We have an 11, 000 strong workforce and we provide
specialised services for three million people in a wider area, including
neighbouring counties and North Wales.

We are one of the largest hospitals inthe West Midlands and have one
of the busiest emergency departments in the country, with more than
169,000 patients attending our Accident and Emergency departments
last year. Many emergency patients are brought to us from a wide
area by both helicopter and land ambulance because of our Major
Trauma Centre status as we are the specialist centre for the North
Midlands and North Wales.

As a university hospital, we work with Keele University and
Staffordshire University and have strong links with local schools and
colleges.

Our specialised services include cancer diagnosis and treatment, cardiothoracic surgery, neurosurgery, renal and
dialysis services, neonatal intensive care, paediatric intensive care, trauma, respiratory conditions, spinal surgery,
upper gastro-intestinal surgery, compiex orthopaedic surgery and laparoscopic surgery.

We are a key playerin the Staffordshire Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) and take an active partin
the planning and discussions. The health economy plan remains focused on minimising admissions to and discharging as
soon as possible from the major acute site at Royal Stoke University Hospital, with as much care as possible being
delivered in community settings or at County Hospital.

We benefit from being able to attract and retain high quality staff. In order to do this we need to continue to maintain
and expand our tertiary capabilities to service the populations of the North West Midlands, Derbyshire, Wales, South
Manchester and the northern suburbs of Birmingham.
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A2. Our Vision, Values and Strategic Objectives

In 2017, we refreshed our core strategy ‘2025Vision’, which we launched at our Annual
General Meeting in September 2017. The strategy sets out our vision, values and key
priorities for moving forward and delivering services that our own families would choose
should they need care, delivered by staff who take pride in everything they do.

Our 2025Vision was developed tosetaclear direction forthe organisation to become aworld class centre of clinical and
academic achievement and care. One in which our staff all work together with a common purpose to ensure patients
receive the highest standards of care and the place in which the best people want to work.

To achieve the 2025Vision we must respond to the changing requirements of the NHS as they emerge and as we move
into ever more challenging times for the service. This requires us to think further than the here and now and look
beyond the boundaries of our organisation for inspiration. This means that our involvement in the STP is crucial in
enabling us to move towards our vision and become the sustainable healthcare provider of hospital services we want to
be into the next decade.

Through our organisational development activities we will continue to encourage a compassionate culture through our
set of shared values, which identify the behaviours, attitudes and approaches we exhibit.

Our full 2025Vision is available via our website: www.uhnm.nhs.uk . Our ‘Plan on a Page’ is shown below:

.
-?-,-'*

University Hospitals of North Midlands
Our 2025 Vision

2025
Vision

Py 15 Cace
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A3. Statement from the Chief Executive

2017/18 has been another extremely busy year for us,
with demand for our services increasing to
unprecedented levels over the winter period. The
Annual Report provides an opportunity to look back
and reflect on the achievements and challenges we
have faced and to consider the opportunities and risks
ahead of us.

This was reflected in our latest CQC report, which, whilst it highlighted many things for us to be proud of, the
reportidentified that safety needs further consideration, particularlyin relation to Emergency and Urgent Care, as
a result of our extreme and sustained pressures. This is why, despite our areas of improvement, our focus must
remain firmly on mitigating theserisks. Regardless of these pressures though, we remain clear that quality is our
number one priority.

As a Board we are very much aware of the challenges facing us, and it is disappointing that the pressure on our
services has meant that we have been unable to meet some of our statutory targets this year in relation to the 4
hour target in A&E, 62 day cancer waits and the Referral to Treatment (RTT) target. We have also had to make
some very difficult decisions to cancel elective surgery; this was one of the many direct impacts that the pressures
overwinter. However, we have anumber of initiatives underway to enable us to overcome these challenges and
we will continue to work hard with our partners across the health and social care economy to address these.

Within this report you will find a detailed breakdown of the Trust’s financial performance. With some external
specialist support, we have been working very hard to deliver on our Financial Recovery Plan during the year and
whilstwe are very clear on the scale of the challenge, we are pleased with the progress we have made this year. It
is our responsibility to reduce our deficit and this will continueto be a majorfocus forus. We mustensure that we
getthe balance right between making the necessary changes to the way that we work so that we are as efficientas
possible and push back on areas where we need support from the system to help us achieve this.

In amongst all of these challenges through, we had some great successes this year with many things to be proud of
and to celebrate. More information about these can be found with the report. None of this would be possible
without the continued work and support of our amazing staff.

Excellent and safe patient care requires commitment, compassion and competence and I'm really pleased that
despite our challenges, we have been able to maintain a high standard of performance against our key quality
indicators during 2017/18.

Paula Clark, Chief Executive
25" May 2018
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A4. Key Issues and Risks

By the nature of our business, Risk Management is integral to everything we do and
during 2017/18 we revised our Risk Management Policy and associated systems and
processes to support our aims to embed a risk-aware, patient led culture. The
improvements which we have made led to an improved assurance rating issued by our
Internal Auditors when compared to2016/17 but we recognise that we have more work
to do to further embed and improve our processes during 2017/18.

During 2017/18 we have reviewed and monitored all risks throughout the organisation and at the start of the year,
the Board identified a set of key strategic risks which were monitored through the Board Assurance Framework.
We categorised these key risks around our Strategic Objectives; summarised as follows:

Strategic Objective 1: Provide safe, effective, caring and responsive services

¢ Uncontrolled demand for our services, exceeding capacity, which may compromise quality of care

* Availability of sufficiently trained clinical workforce, which may compromise quality of service provision

» ‘Escalation areas’ being open as a result of increased demand and our ability to staff these areas sufficiently

Strategic Objective 2: Achieve NHS constitutional patient access standards

e Overcrowding within our emergency portals compromising patient flow through the organisation

e Availability of appropriately trained medical staffing to deliver an optimal service

» Ability to discharge / transfer medically fit patients in a timely manner as a result of insufficient community
care capacity y

e Capacity versus demand for elective care to achieve the Referral to Treatment (RTT) constitutional standard

Strategic Objective 3: Achieve excellence in employment, education, development and research
o Levels of staff turnover and ability to recruit, which may impact upon sustainability of some services
s Promotion of education and research opportunities, which enable us to attract and retain staff

Strategic Objective 4: Lead strategic change within Staffordshire and beyond

* Improvements in productivity to achieve our Financial Recovery Plan (FRP)

* Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s) unable torepatriate work leading to an inability to increase activity and
associated income levels

* Health and Social Care being unable to provide admission avoidance schemes leading to a blockage in our
resources

* Multi-service Community Providers not leading to the development of robust community services

Strategic Objective 5: Ensure efficient use of resources
* Services not being delivered within agreed budgets leading to an inability to achieve the Financial Plan

The Board will be refreshing the Board Assurance Framework for 2018/19 and whilst this will continue to focus
upon threats to the achievement of our Strategic Objectives, it will be enhanced to ensure a more robust approach
to monitoring risks specifically associated with our Operational and Financial Plan.
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A5. Going Concern

The ‘going concern’ assumption is a fundamental principle in the preparation of
financial statements. An organisation under this assumption is viewed as
continuing in business for the foreseeable future. Assets and liabilities are
recorded on the basis that an organisation will be able to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. For the NHS, the
Department of Health describes this as ‘the anticipated continuation of the
provision of a service in the future, as evidenced by inclusion of financial
provision for that service in published documents’.

We anticipate that it may take some time before we can achieve financial balance on a
®, sustainable basis. The Board has carefully considered the principle of ‘going concern’ and
g O concluded that there are material uncertainties related to the financial sustainability
(profitabilityand liquidity) of the Trust which may cast significant doubt about the ability to
continue as a going concern.

Nevertheless, we have conduded that assessing the Trust as a going concern remains appropriate. We have
agreed contracts withlocal commissioners for 2018/19 and services are being commissioned in the same manner
inthe future asin prioryears and there are no discontinued operations. Similarly, no decision has been made to
transfer services or significantly amend the structure of the organisation at this time. The Board has a reasonable
expectation that the Trust will have access to adequate resources in the form of support from the Department of
Health (NHS Act 2006 s42a) to continue to deliverthe full range of mandatory services for the foreseeable future.

Subject to the receipt of the revenue funding within the 2018/19 financial plan, we consider that this provides
sufficient evidence that we will continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future. On this basis, we have
adopted the going concern basis for preparing the accounts and have not included the adjustments that would
result if it were unable to continue as a going concern.

The assessment accords with the statutory guidance contained within the Department of Health and Social Care
Group Accounting Manual.
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A6. Performance Summary: 2017 / 18 at a Glance

Apr 17

Two new mothers thank
staff on Neonatal Intensive
Care Unit for their
outstanding care and
compassion, during
traumatic circumstances.

Aug 17

Our maxillofacial cancer
surgery and anaesthetic
team became the first in
the country to offer 3D
computer modelling,

printing and reconstructive
surgery all under one roof.

Dec 17

The Short Stay Unit at
Royal Stoke has bean
helping vulnerable patients
by providing them with
fresh clothes to wear when
they are discharged.

May 17

The Cardiology team were
rated No.1 in the country
after winning the
prestigious British Medical

Journal (BMJ) ‘Cardiology
team of the year’ award.

Sep 17

Staff were recognised at
The Sentinel’s annual Our
Heroes awards evening on

Thursday 28 September.

Jan 18

Dr Tirej Brimo, a
Foundation Trainee Doctor
at Royal Stoke University
Hospital, named as one of

Medscape’s Physicians of
the Year for 2017.

For the first time, we
treated over 1,000,000
patients in a single year,

Oct 17

Our very own Professor
Jim Nolan and Professor
Mamas Mamas
successfully hosted a two-
day ‘Transradial

Masterclass’ conference in
Manchester.

Feb 18

Robina Johnstone, Midwife
at UHNM celebrated 50
years in the NHS. In that

time she will have helped

care for over 50,000 babies
and their families.

Jul 17

We awarded a special
Honorary ‘UHNM Hero’
Award to a former nurse
who helped save the life

of a woman suffering a
cardiac arrest.

Nov 17

Staff descended on the
Moat House Hotel to

celebrate the ‘Night Full
of Stars’ staff awards
event. The 14 categories
recognised some of the
outstanding work going
on each and every day.

Mar 18

The Critical Care team
were shortlisted for a
HSJ Value award in the
‘Acute Service redesign’
category for their
Transformation
Programme.
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A7. Celebrating our Achievements — Our Awards

During 2017/18, our staff have been gaining recognition, both internally and
externally, for their efforts and expertise from judges, panellists and patients
alike. The nominations, awards and special presentations have been received
by staff right across the Trust, showcasing the professionalism, quality and
talent of our workforce.

Here is just a snapshot of some of the many things we have achieved and of which we are proud#

* %
4*‘#
*

St

Staff Awards November 2017

%
X

Katie Knowles
Leading with
Compassion

Jenny Dodimead
Volunteer of the Year

Joe Potts
Employee of the Year

Elizabeth Handford Radiotherapy Team
Clinical Team of the Year

Adam Farmer Teresa Wilson
Rising Star UHNM Charity Award Learner of the Year
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National Recognition

We've had anothergreatyear with national awards too, which are a great boost for our staff. Here are just some
of our achievements.

Our ‘Centre of Excellence’, which
supports people with Multiple
Sclerosis (MS) was crowned the

2017 MS Professional of the
Year at the MS Society Awards,
which took place in London.

The Leading with Compassion
Shropshire and Staffordshire
Leadership Leads Group were
winners in the HPMA Academi The Cardiac Assessment
Wales Award for Excellence in Nurses (CAN) team swooped
Organisational Development 2017 the ‘British Heart Foundation
Team of the Year’ award at the
British Cardiac Society meeting
in Manchester, after also
receiving Team of the Year
accolade at the BMJ awards in
May 2017.

The Critical Care Unitwon a
national award for monitoring
patient outcomes as part of
the Case Mix Programme
(CMP) Quarterly Prize for their
work in Critical Care.

The redevelopment of County
Hospital won a prestigious,
regional construction award at
the ‘Celebration Construction
2017 West Midlands Awards’
with Kier.

L. . | Dr Ranjan Sanyal and Dr Girish
Anaesthetic Registrar, Dr Felicity Jayne D s Muddegowda, Consultant
Avann, has received the prestigious ‘Harvey & : pi stroke Physicians won Joint
Grant Prize’ after showcasing an audit into 1 3 UHNM Clinical Teacher of the
experience of treatment stroke patients to Pt Year. Mr Sriram Rajagopalan
the Neuro Anaesthesia & Critical Care Society 4 finished runner up.
of Great Britain and Ireland (NACCISGBI).
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A8. UHNM in Numbers 2017/18

169,885

Emergency
Department
Attendances

1,342

new starters

Staff Trained
in Service
Improvement

Up to 50

Award
Nominations

Care Excellence
Framework Visits
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7,318,692

views of our
Facebook

page

Care Excellence
Framework
Platinum Awards

& SAFER - Caring for ALL our patients

& SAFER - Caring for ALL our patients

& SAFER - Caring for ALL our patients

1,233,856

calls to our
switchboard

3191

Patients Recruited
into Research
Studies

(A AR AN R LR NY]

SAFETY

LISTEN LEARN ACT

1,047,649

total patients
treated



14,266

Elective
inpatients

2,137,600

Twitter
impressions

836,693

outpatient
appointments

Board
Meetings held
in Public

71

C Difficile
Infections

7,200

staff
vaccinated
with flu jab

1 patient attends the
Emergency
Department every

3 minutes

A INight

FUEOT
SPARS

cases of
MRSA
reported

468,264

visitors to our
website

Awards Given
our at Awards
Evening
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A9. How we Measure Performance

We measure our performance using the NHS Improvement (NHSI) single
oversight framework. This framework is comprised of 35 metrics across 6

domains of:

e Finance and use of resources
e Operational performance

e Organisational health

e Caring

e Safe

o Effective

We report our performance to the Trust Board on a
monthly basis and we are also monitored closely by
the NHSI. Aseries of triggers have beenidentified by
our regulators which range from ‘maximum provider
autonomy’ to ‘special measures’. These triggers are
used to identify potential concerns and as a
consequence of our financial position, we are
currently in the category of ‘special measures’.

Our monthly performance report provides the Board
with an overview of latest performance against the
key metrics and identifies exceptions, including
position exceptions, where performance has
outperformed usual tolerances, or where atargethas
beenfailed. Within the Single Oversight Framework

are five constitutional standards. This means they
are set out within the NHS Constitution as standards
which we pledge to achieve. Whilst pledges are not
legally binding, they represent a commitment by the
NHS to provide comprehensive high quality services.

These standards are:

o A&E 4 hourwait

¢ Diagnosticsixweek waits

e ReferraltoTreatment 18 - weeks

e Allcancer62 daywaits

e 62 day waits from screening service referral
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A10. How we have Performed During 2017/2018

An overwhelming theme for our
performance during 2017/18 was the
increase in demand for non-elective
services. The number of patients
choosing us for their treatment and care
remained high, and we in turn expanded
services where possible to meet this
demand.

A clear indicator of this was the increase in new outpatient appointments and additional day case procedures
performed.

The number of non-elective inpatients also increased and for some services this meant a considerable loss in
managing to treat as many routine patients as we would have liked, particularly during the winter months. Also
affected were the number of patients who could not have their cancelled operation re -scheduled within the 28 day
standard and the deterioration of the Referral to Treatment performance. We have plans to increase the size and
scale of our services further for 2018/19 as more patients continue to choose our services.

This year was an incredibly challenging year for the Emergency Centre team, seen in the four-hour wait
performance, which was significantly below the 95% target. The most powerful indicator of this was the number
of greater than 12 hour trolley waits, which this year slightly decreased to 508, most of which occurred between
December 2017 and March 2018.

We have achieved and sustained the diagnosticwait time standard of 6 weeks. This is essential in ensuring patients
have an early diagnosis.

We faced huge challengesin meeting the Referral to Treatment standard and failed to achieve the 92% standard in
any month of 2017/18. The key specialties experiencing extreme pressures are Trauma and Orthopaedics (a
considerable amount of capacity has been lost due to non-elective trauma demand); Neurosurgery (due to the
number of spinal patients requiring surgery); General Surgery; Dermatology and Plastic Surgery (both due to the
high demand from the initial cancer 2ww referral).

We worked hard to try to continue to meet our obligation to cancer patients during 2017/18. However, we were
unable to meetthe 62 day wait from GP referral to treatment Cancer Wait Time (CWT) standards for the year and
we apologised for this. The reason for this was mainly due to the high demand for emergency care and cancer
services.

The 31 day diagnosis to treatment was achieved along with the 2 weeks from referral to first appointment.
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10.1 Operational Performance

Our Our

National Performance Performance = What our Performance

Performance Metric .
Target last year this year Means

2016/17 2017/18

Operational Performance
A&E - % patients admitted, transferred or

95% 78.46% 77.62% Target not achieved
discharged within 4 hours : 0 ke

Diagnostics —% patients seen within 6 weeks 99% 99.22% 99.31%
Referral to Treatment - % patients within 18
§ ikt b 92% 85.57% 71.73%
weeks
Cancer - % patients seen within 2 weeks from
neer- % pa een within 2 we 93% 93.10% 98.30%
referral to firstappointment |
Cancer - % patients diagnosed being treated
z.m. 6 patients diagnosed being treate 06% osHo% 97.40%
within 31 days
C - % patients being s from urgent GP
e SRR ILER 85% 71.00% 78.50% Target not achieved
referrals
Activity and Waiting Lists
Number of elective inpatients treated n/a 14,913 14,266 n/a
Number of elective day cases n/a 83,952 86,909 n/a
Number of emergency inpatients n/a 108,067 109,781 n/a
Number of new outpatient appointments n/a 287,997 310,019 n/a
Number of outpatient follow up appointments n/a 555,432 526,674 n/a
Total ber of patientsonii tient waiting list
o.a number of p n inpatient waiting lis il 3008 S50 n/a
— first attendance
Total number of patients on outpatient waitin
e e A -~ et n/a 25,214 29,246 n/a
list
Number of operations cancelled at short notice
n/a 1403 1845 n/a

for non-clinical reasons

Number of cancelled operations not rearranged
within the target timescale of 28 days
Emergency Department

0 172 197 Target not achieved

Number of emergency attendances nfa 175,801 169,885 n/a

Number of 12 hour trolley waits 0 590 508 Target not achieved
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10.2 Quality Performance

Stakeholder Engagement

Each year we hold a Stakeholder Engagement Workshop where members of staff along with partners from local

councils, Clinical Commissioning Groups and Healthwatch are invited to help us to share our priorities for quality

improvement. Inour Quality Account 2016/17, we identified anumber of Quality Priorities and these have been a

key focus for us during 2017/18 where we have made strong progress:

s Reduction in overall harm from Patient Safety Incidents

* Reductionintotal patientfalls reported and reductionin overall rate of falls per 1000 bed days

» Reductioninharmto patientsasresult of falls

s Exceedingthe 95% National Target throughout 2017/18 for ‘Safety Thermometer’

o The percentage of staff saying they perceived an experience of bullying, harassment or abuse from other staff
inthe last 12 month (colleagues and managers) reduced from 28% to 27% although this remained at 26% from
patients and the public.

o Elective Surgery (Bariatricand Trauma & Orthopaedics) has been significantly increased at County Hospital

» Reductionsin complaints received at both Royal Stoke University Hospitaland County Hospital compared to
2016/17

Key Quality Performance Indicators

Our Our

L Performance Performance What our Performance
Performance Metric Target |
last year this year

2016/17 2017/18

Infection Control

Clostridium Difficile Infection —number 82 92 71 rarge ieved '|
Avoidable MRSA Cases 0 1 0 |REST ieve
Incidents

Never Events Target not achieved
Falls Resulting in Harm n/a 796 1003 n/a
Medication Errors: Rate per 10, 000 bed days n/a 33.58 38.2 n/a
Falls resulting harm: Rate per 1,000 bed days n/a 1.56 2.23 n/a

PressureUlcers —Hospital Acquired Grades 2 & 3 ;
. Target not achieved
reportable {avoidable)

Pressure Ulcers —Hospital Acquired Grades 4 Target not achieved
Emergency C Section Rate as a % Total Births 13.32% n/a
Screening

VTE Risk Assessments 95% 97.13% 95.5% Tal [ f‘l

o Thetarget rate reductionforfalls was 10% reduction in rate per 1000 bed days rather than raw numbers as we
have had more beds opened during 2017/18 and this allows for activity variations

e We alsouse moderate harm and above from falls which shows improvement rate from 0.23 (2016/17) per
1000 bed days to 0.21 (2017/18)

s We have seenincreasesinreported falls butseeing lowerrate of serious harm as a result of the falls
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Mortality
Our mortality rate with current HSMR for 2017/18 year to date (April 2017 — December 2017) reported at 103.
This means that our number of in hospital deaths is within expected range based on the type of patients that have
been treated.

Flaase note thal e Tunnel piot 18 Gnly vald when the overall HSME scors 18 around 100

UHNM continues

to compare well
against Midlands
peers during
2017/18

(WG T GRS

HSWR
|
|
|

(]

@ SO0 100G 1560 2000 2500 A0CE 3500

Expocted number of deaths

Complaints

The total number of complaints opened at Royal Stoke University Hospital during 2017/18 is 646 which is a
decrease of 5.7% overthe same periodin 2016/17 when the Trust saw 685 complaints opened. The total number
of complaints opened at County Hospital was 122 in 2017/18, which is an 11.6% reduction from 2016/17 with 138
complaints received.

During 2017/18, the Complaints Team have made a number of improvements to the complaints process,

summarised as follows:

s (Categorisation of complaints to assist in analysis of trends and themes

e Alignment of processes across both of our sites to ensure consistency in warking practices

* Improvement in the timeliness of responses from receipt of complaint to final response with an average of
42.5 days during 2017/18 compared to 53.9 days in 2016/17

¢ Improved consistency and quality of responses

* Development of a Trust wide Peer Review Programme which provides consistency of approach to reviewing
complaints across both hospital sites and forms an integral part of our governance processes for identification
of learning lessons
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Research and Development - Performance Summary

2916 ¥ @) 384

patients participated in clinical " _ p Studies were open or in follow up across 33
research studies AT i clinical speciality areas, including 40 active
v —— commercial studies sponsored by pharmaceutical

153 companies
Expressions of Interest i, 49

for new commercial
studies submitted, Active innovation projects
attracting £1.1m of being overseen by the
commercial clinical Embedded Intellectual
trial income Property Manager; the
highest level of activity
across the West Midlands

Academically we have submitted bids to the value of around £8m

arecord achievement with a total academicincome of

£1.2m.

278 82.3
Year-end total of academic - -

publications in medical and
scientific journals

Full time equivalent staff in the
Research and Development
Directorate

Anti-Bribery and Fraud

We are absolutely committed to maintaining an honest, open and well-intentioned atmosphere, so as to best fulfil
the objectives of the Trust and of the NHS. Our Anti-Bribery & Anti-Fraud Policy sets out our approach and advice
to employees in actively dealing with detected or suspected fraud, bribery or corruption, and the avoidance of
such activity as directed by the NHS Counter Fraud Authority. This policy details the arrangements for such
concerns to be raised by employees, those who do business with the Trust or members of the public.

We adhere tothe NHS Counter Fraud Authority Standards for Providers, other directions and procedures published
by the NHS Counter Fraud Authority, and the NHS Counter Fraud Authority NHS Anti-Fraud Manual when
investigating cases and imposing sanctions.
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10.3 Financial Performance

In 2017/18 the Trust agreed a financial plan with NHS
Improvement to deliver a year end deficit of £68.9m. Within
this the plan the Trust was required to achieve CIP savings of
£50m and would receive £24.8m of Deficit Support and a
refund of contractual fines of c£10m. The Trust was unable to
agree to the Control Total set by NHSI and did not therefore
receive any Provider Sustainability Funding in 2017/18.

At the end of the financial year the Trust has a deficit of £71.3m against the planned deficit of £68.9m. The
deterioration inthe position was mainly due to the cost of additional capacity and lost elective activity over Winter
totaling £7.8m, which was partly mitigated by national funding for the costs of Winter at £2.1m. Additional
mitigation came from the over achievement of CIP schemes.

The Trust set itself a challenging CIP target for 2017/18 of £50m, equal to 6.5% of costs in the plan. The Trust was
able to make £52.6m of savings in year. The main areas of savings in year related to reductions in workforce
expenditure, specifically from premium pay reductions and skill mix efficiencies. Improvements were also made in
clinical optimisation schemes, various income opportunities, and efficiencies from procurement and other non -pay
savings.

2017/18 was also a challenging year for our commissioners and the Trust contract management agenda was
challenging for both provider and commissioning organisations across the Local Health Economy. The significant
unscheduled care and winter pressures, which materialised in year, placed a considerable operational pressure on
the Trust and meant that the Trust was unable to deliver patient activitytothe levels planned and as a result earn
the levels of income set out in the financial plan at the start of the year.

2018/19 Financial Plan shows a further improvement in the financial position from 2017/18. The Trust has a
planned deficit for 2018/19 of £44.8m. This deficit has been agreed with NHSI as part of the trajectory to return
the Trust to a break even position and release the Trust from being in financial special measures. In order to
achieve the planned deficit of £44.8m in 2018/19 the Trust is required to make new Cost Improvements totaling
£51.9m. The Trust also expects to receive £24.8m Deficit support as a continuation of the support agreed
following the integration of County Hospital to the Trust in November 2014.

The Board of UHNM is the Corporate Trustee forthe UHNM Charity. Charitable income received for the year from
donations, legacies and investments amounted to £1.7m. During the year £1.7m was spent on advanced medical
equipment, staff development, high quality research and enhancing the hospital environment. To enable the
clinical teams to take advantage of developments in medical science and technology, substantial purchases have
beenmade in many areas, including £747k for an Electronic Observations and Monitors System (EOBS) to capture
real time data on the physiology of patients and to prioritise treatment; £60k for an ultrasound scanner in the Neo
natal Intensive Care Unit to improve service delivery and £37k on 9 new theatre trolleys.
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10.4 Statement of Comprehensive Income Account: Year Ended 31 March 18

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 % £'000 %

Revenue from patient careactivities 602,589 81.5% 610,684 87.7%
Other operating revenue 136,690 18.5% 85,946 12.3%
Total revenue 739,279 100.0% 696,630 100.0%
Operating expenses (770,128) 97.5% (736,512) 97.2%
Operating surplus / (deficit) (30,849) (4.2%) (39,882) {5.4%)
Other gains and losses 7 (0.0%) (5) 0.0%
Surplus / (deficit) before interest (30,842) (4.2%) (39,887) (5.4%)
Investment revenue 50 (0.0%) 64 (0.0%)
Finance costs (15,518) 2.0% (19,336) 2.6%
Surplus / (deficit) for the financial year (46,310) (6.3%) (59,159) (8.0%)
Public dividend capital dividends payable (3,925) 0.5% (2,119) 0.3%
Transfers by absorption — net gains / (losses) 0 0.0% 0 0.0%
Retained surplus / (deficit) for the year {50,235) (61,278)

10.5 Performance against Breakeven Duty

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000
Retained support / (deficit) under IFRS (50,235) (61,278)
Impairments 22,174 (8,583)
Adjustments for donated asset/gov’t grant reserve
A 288

elimination 144
Actual surplus under UK GAAP (27,773) (69,717)

10.6 Revenue

Income in 2017/18 totalled £697m. The majority of the Trust's income (£598m, 86%) was delivered from Clinical
Commissioning Groups and NHS England in relation to healthcare services provided to patients during the year.
Other operating revenue relates to services provided to other Trusts, training and education and miscellaneous
fees and charges.

10.7 Summary of Total Income

2017/18 - Summary of Total Income

M Clinical commissioning groups and NHS England (patient
care)
B Other patient care income

Education, training and R&D income

¥ Non patient care services to other NHS bodies
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2016/17 2017/18

£m £fm
Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England (patient care) 582.8 598.1
19.8 125

Other patient careincome
Education, trainingand R&D income 326 324

Non patient careservices to other NHS bodies 237 11.8
Other 80.4 41.8
739.3 696.6

Total revenue
10.8 Summary of Income from CCG’s

2017/18 - Summary of Income from CCGs & NHSE

M Stoke on Trent CCG

® North Staffordshire CCG

i Specialised Commissioning / NHSE
m Stafford & Surrounds CCG

® Cannock Chase CCG

# South Cheshire CCG

W Other
2016/17 2017/18
£m % £m %
Stoke on Trent CCG 161 27% 157 26%
North Staffordshire CCG 112 19% 106 17%
Specialised Commissioning / NHSE 212 35% 214 35%
Stafford and Surrounds CCG 63 11% 81 13%
Cannock Chase CCG 21 4% 19 3%
South Cheshire CCG 10 2% 11 2%
Other 21 4% 23 4%
Total CCG income 600 100% 611 100%
2016/17 2017/18 % change
£m £m %
602.6 610.7 1.35%

Revenue from clinical activities

Other revenue:
Medical school (SIFT) 8.0 8.6 7.50%

Junior doctor training (MADEL) 14.0 14.0 0.00%
WDD funding 4.3 4.4 2.33%
Researchand development 6.3 4.7 (25.40%)
Non patient careservices to other NHS bodies 23.7 11.8 (50.21%)
Other Income 804 42.4 (47.26%)
Total other revenue 136.7 85.9 (37.16%)
7393 696.6 (5.77%)

Total revenue
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10.9 Operating Expenditure

In accordance with the requirement to annually revalue the estate and the hospital the Trust commissioned an
independent valuer to carry out a valuation exercisein March 2018 on the whole estate. This resulted inan overall
net upwards revaluation of £54m.

. - 2016/17 2017/18 % change
Summary of Operating Expenditure £m an %

Staff costs 458.4 4611 0.59%
Other costs 77.5 70.5 (9.03%)
Clinical supplies and services 142.4 1454 2.11%
Depreciation 273 27.2 (0.37%)
Premises costs 26.2 20.0 (23.66%)
Clinical negligence 16.1 209 29.81%
Total operating expenditure before impairments 747.9 7451 (0.37%)
Impairments 22.2 -8.6 (138.74%)
Total operating expenditure 770.1 736.5 (4.36%)

10.10 Performance Indicators

The measure of the overall financial performance of the Trust can be expressed using NHSI's Single Oversight
Framework (SOF). This consists of 5 financial metrics where a score of 1is the highest score and 4 is the lowest
score.

The metrics and scores are:

e Liquidity Ratio (score 3)

e Capital Servicing Capacity (score 4)

s |&E Margin (score 4)

s  I&E Margin Distance from Plan (score 2)
s Agency spend (score 1)
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10.11 Capital

In recent years the Trust has invested heavily in capital and received funding relating to Integrating Hospital
Servicesin Staffordshire. The overall capital funding available reduced in 2017/18 however the Trust continued to
invest in the retained estate with overall capital expenditure of £18.34m (£50.5m in 2016/17). The main areas of
investments were:

, 2017/18

Capital Spend £000
Medical Assets:
Haemodialysis Machines: In-centre replacement machines 299
Neonatal Ventilator Replacement 152
PCA (patient controlled analgesia) pumps 262
Other Medical assets 2,302
Total medical assets 3,015
ICT Schemes:
Strategic Infrastructure Development (Servers) 460
Central Replacements of PCs, Laptops and handheld Devices 573
Cyber security 547
Other ICT Schemes 1,713
Total ICT Schemes: 3,293
Other Schemes
PFl capital 2,923
Service Reconfiguration schemes 2,763
PFl beds/NIV 2,727
Estates and General works 3,619
Total: 18,340

The capital spend has been funded by a combination of internally generated funds, donations, grants and PDC
funding for Cyber Security and the Urgent Treatment Centre.
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A11. Sustainable Performance and Development

We are committed to demonstrating leadership in
sustainability and developing a world-class healthcare
system that is financially, socially and environmentally
sustainable. In order to deliver this, our Sustainability
team continues to implement the Sustainable
Development Management Plan (SDMP): ‘Our 2020
Vision: Our Sustainable Future’. Here we provide you
with some of the key initiatives undertaken during the
financial year 2017/18.

Waste Management — Innovation and Contractual Change

Our Sustainability Team has been working hard toimprove the quality of waste segregation and safely declassify a
large proportion of waste from ‘hazardous’ to ‘non-hazardous’. This has enabled a huge opportunity and freedom
to transportand dispose of waste in a different way; nolongerrequiring the use of a specialist, clinical (hazardous)
waste disposal contractor and disposal facility.

With this opportunity, the Trust have partnered and entered into a contract with a local waste haulier and Stoke
(munlupal) Waste to Energy plant to accept non-hazardous waste (offensive and domestic) as a ‘mixed’ waste
stream for disposal. This disposal facility produces energy from household waste
on behalf of local authorities and forthe first time the NHS, with UHNM being the
first Trust to achieve this nationally.

In orderto realise this opportunity, it was essential to ensure the safe and effident
storage of offensive and domestic waste as a ‘mixed” waste stream prior to
disposal. As such, we received delivery of two new waste compactors at the Royal
Stoke site in order to replace the existing antiquated infrastructure.

Project benefits include:

e Cost savings through negating the requirement for a clinical waste contractor

e Use of alocal transport company means fewer transport miles and emissions

e Use of local transport and disposal facility bolsters the local economy

e Storing waste as ‘mixed’ means easier handling and efficient use of space within the service yards.

Energy and Water Efficiency Schemes

Our Sustainability and Operational Estates teams have worked in partnership to implement a portfolio of small
{revenue funded) energy and water efficiency schemes across both the Royal Stoke and County Hospital sites.
Schemes include; installation of additional LED lighting, pipe insulation, urinal controls and secondary glazing.
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In partnership with colleagues from Infection Prevention, Facilities Management and Estates Capital, 56 high
efficiency hand dryers have been installed within the retained estate non-clinical bathroom areas. Resultant
savings are based on reduced paper towel usage, therefore offsetting both purchase and disposal costs.

Savmg Lives W|th Solar - Community Energy Scheme

3 e In 2016, the award winning ‘Saving Lives with Solar’ Community Energy scheme
installed over 1,000 roof-mounted Solar Photovoltaic (PV) panels on the Royal
Stoke and County Hospital roofs. Uniquely, the project value of £335,600 was
entirely funded by investment from the public.

The scheme is a first of its kind for the NHS and has only been possible due to
the partnership between UHNM, Southern Staffordshire Community Energy
Limited (SSCEL) and local fuel poverty charity ‘Beat the Cold’.

| Vulnerable patients (those identified with a health condition that is at risk of
becoming exacerbated by living in a cold and damp home) are now being
referred by clinical teams in Respiratory and Elderlymedicine to Beat the Cold.

The solar panels are now generating as expected, and the solar energy Feed-in-
Tariff revenueis accumulatinginto a ‘Community Fund’, used by Beat the Cold
-~ toprovide referred patients with a home visit upon discharge in order to help
facilitate a safe temperature and affordable warmth.

Due to the innovative and high profile nature of the scheme, Beat the Cold has
attracted additional funding from both public and private sector organisations
to expand the delivery of the intervention. This means that the team are
challenged with ensuring that sufficient numbers of patients are referred in
order to meet the funding requirements.

NHS Sustainability Day — Campaign Roadshow

Our Sustainability Team were delighted to host a national NHS Sustainability Day Campaign Roadshow. UHNM
were one of four trusts hosting this national event, making UHNM the focus of a wide range of Estates and
Sustainability professionals from other health care providers within the Midlands and beyond.

The event allowed the Sustainability team the opportunity to showcase key projects and innovations whilst also
networking, gathering best practice ideas and benchmarking ourselves against others to enable future project
development.
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A12. 2017/18 Highlights Overview

Care Quality Commission Inspection

The Care Quality Commission inspected our services in October 2017 and whilst our overall rating of
‘Requires Improvement’ had not changed since our previous inspection in 2015, the inspection team
acknowledged that a number of significant improvements had been made. We were delighted that
they rated us as ‘Outstanding’ across all core services within the Caring domain. Improvements were
also realised in the Effective and Well Led domains where we were rated as Good and the Responsive
domain had advanced from Inadequate to Requires Improvement. Our ratings are shown below:

Overall rating Requires improvement O
Are services safe? Requiresimprovement o
Are services effective? Good @
Are services caring? Outstanding *
Are services responsive? Requiresimprovement o
Are serviceswell led? Good @

New £1m Radiology Day Case Unit

We opened a new £1m Radiology Day Case Unit at our Royal Stoke
University Hospital site at the beginning of the year. The unit, which
treats vascular, stroke, neurology and oncology patients requiring
Interventional Radiology, was officially opened by Dr Nicola
Strickland, President of the Royal College of Radiologists.

We're delighted to have this outstanding new facility for patients who
require Interventional Radiological treatment.

The area can treat up to nine patients at a time, which means not only will it vastly improve patient experience, but
we can carry out an additional 750day case procedures ayear, which would otherwise have occupied aninpatient
bed.

Dr NicolaStrickland, President of The Royal College of Radiologists, said that she was delighted to be able to open
the new Radiology Day Case Unit as itis a real exemplar of good practice in the United Kingdom. She said that the
unit should act as a beacon for other centres around the country and that patients will continue to benefit
enormously from all the expertise at the hospital .
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Major Trauma Centre

Our Major Trauma Centre was rated for having the best total
rolling survival rates of any adult major trauma single site
centre since 2013. The figures published by the Trauma Audit
and Research Network (TARN) show that for every 1,000 major
trauma patients treated at UHNM, 13 more survived who would
otherwise not have been expected to.

In addition, the Centre also had the best survival rates for adult
major trauma in 2015/16.

Stoke International live Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangio-Pancreatography
(ERCP) Symposium

Some of our clinicians hosted a live international
endoscopy symposium in late April 2017. The
EndoscopicRetrograde Cholangio-Pancreatography
(ERCP) symposium, the second international event
to have been organised by the Endoscopy team, is
the only one of its kind to be held in the UK. An
ERCP is a type of x-ray and camera examination
that enables examination and/or treatment of
conditions of the biliary system (liver, gall bladder,
pancreas, pancreatic and bile ducts).

This dedicated ERCP symposiumis one of its kind in
the UK. Live ERCP cases were beamed from Royal
Stoke University Hospital, the Asian Institute of
Gastroenterology in Hyderabad and St Thomas
Hospital in London. The internationally renowned
ERCP expert Dr Nageshwar Reddy was part of the
faculty and the symposium has received excellent
feedback. This will become a bi-annual event and
really puts UHNM at the forefront of sharing our
experience with colleagues from across the world.
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Our AMU Nursing Team are Sepsis Champions

A special team of nurses are helping to save lives. Our Sepsis
Champions take the lead in raising awareness of and enabling
staff to identify the potentially deadly condition. Based on the
Acute Medical Unit (AMU), the Champions also work with staff
across the Trust to enhance education and adherence to
essential guidelines. Sepsisis arare but serious complication of
an infection. Without quick treatment, it can lead to multiple
organ failure and death.

The Sepsis Champions were given the Team of the Month
award following their achievements and their dedication
towards increasing the quality of care for our patients.

UHNM and Keele host Suturing Course

With our faculty support, the Keele Surgical
Society (KSS) hosted a historic regional event
aimed at suturing and surgical skills.

Over 40 delegates from across the Midlands
attended an all-day suturing and tissue handling
surgical skill course. The event, whichwas held in
our Clinical Education Centre, was delivered by 15
surgical faculty members. The one day course
ended with a competitive suturing competition,
where all delegates showed passion and
perseverance during the day to master the basic
suturing techniques.

Delegate feedback was extremely positive
towards conducting further events in the future
and so we aim to do this in order to raise the
profile of our medical school, KSS and ourselves.
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Long Service Recognised at Awards

In May 2017, more than 325
staff celebrated landmark
years of service at University
Hospitals of North Midlands.

Over 100 of the staff attended
Long Service and Retirement
Awards in front of an
audience of 200 people.

Amongst those recognised
audiologist Neal Ratcliffe
(pictured) holds the record for
the longest service with over
45 years and received his
retirement award on the day.

We are extremely proud of our people's commitment and loyalty. Ourlongservice and retirement awards is one of
the ways in which we celebrate and recognise the great contribution that our people have made over many years.
The event involves presenting awards for staff who have worked at the Trust for 20, 30 and 40 years' service
without any breaks in service, which is a fantastic testament to their commitment.

We also issue retirement awards for people who have completed a minimum of 20 years continuous service
without any breaksin service within any NHS organisation. The event is held annually and those attending were
there to both celebrate the service of our staff and to catch up with old friends and colleagues.

County Hospital Bariatric Surgery — 100 Patients

In June 2017, we reported that our Bariatric Surgery service at
County Hospital in Stafford had completed 100 surgical
procedures. This was an important milestone demonstrating the
safety of the service since it began in December 2016, which has
now moved to a new permanent seven bed unit at the hospital.

The success of the department has resulted in it being
approached to take patients from across the West Midlands and
North West.

The unit operates 23 hours a day and treats 350 patients a year. With this, the unit at County hospital will be the
leading bariatric centre in the West Midlands with potential to become a centre of excellence in the country. There
are four bariatric consultants at County Hospital with a 50-strong support team of specialist nurses, dieticians,
endocrinologists, anaesthetists and secretarial staff.
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Physiotherapy Staff Service Launch

In August, we launched a physiotherapy service for our
staff which aims to support staff health and wellbeing.
Staff are able to self-refer for Physiotherapy assessment
and treatment of acute musculoskeletal problems.

The staff service includes physiotherapy for:

e Musculoskeletal (MSK) injuries with a history of less
than two weeks
Immediate Post-operative Orthopaedic surgery
Immediate Post-fracture
Acute flair ups of more chronic musculoskeletal
conditions

‘Operation’ Came to Royal Stoke

A giant version of the classic board
game 'Operation’ came to our Royal \ “\ lillecooooes .
Stoke sit in September 2017 to help LAY A E A
promote organ donation. oL i the M5, Qe

> [remat Reguier a0

e your esine

NHS Blood and Transplant brought
theirlargerthan life sized version of
the game to our main entrance and
players were able touse giant
tweezers to remove organs from Cavity
Sam whilst trying to avoid the dreaded
buzzers.

The purpose of this game was to
encourage playerstotalk about organ
donation with their families.
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First for Onsite 3D Model, Print and Surgery

Our maxillofacial cancer surgery and anaesthetic team
became the first in the country to offer 3D computer
modelling, printing and reconstructive surgery all
under one roof. The innovative technology, which is
used as part of facial reconstruction in cancer patients,
enables clinicians to restore features using exact,
customised models. The same team also introduced an
airway management technique called 'THRIVE', which
uses high flow and humidified oxygen to safely sedate
and maintain oxygenation during the prolonged
apnoeic period before patients go to sleep.

Our surgical nurse practitioners
(SNPs) now formpart of a fully
integrated service for patients,
relatives, nursing and medical staff at
the Trust.

SNPs have provided a high level of
patient-centred care for over 20 years,
but this year the team has developed
from its original remit as an out-of-
hours service providing only
emergency treatment to one which is
operational 24-hours-a-day, seven
days-a-week.

International Recognition for Cardiology Research

Recognition of the Cardiology Research taking place here is growing globally and will continue to do so as one of
our Professors presented the findings of a worldwide study at an international meeting in Paris.

EuroPCR, the annual meeting of the European Association of Percutaneous Cardiovascular Interventions (EAPCI)
was held in May 2017. The meeting sees 12,000 delegates in attendance each year from around the world.

We were named the highest recruiting site in the UK to the ‘e-ULTIMASTER’ trial, which looks at patients who have
received treatment with the Ultimaster Coronary Stent. Our success in this trial shows that cardiology research
here is world class and data from the study will facilitate research that will improve patient care and clinical

outcomes.
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Lymphoedema Nurse Puts us on the Map!

One of our nurse specialists has enhanced our
reputation on a national scale by speaking at
several high-profile conferences in 2017, including
the British Lymphology Society Annual Conference,
the British Journal of Community Nursing Annual
Lymphoedema Conference and the Internal Vein
Congress.

Rebecca has also won an award from the British
Journal of Nursing, published a number of articles in
highly-regarded medical journals and helped to
develop the lymphoedema service at the Trust.

Lymphoedema is a distressing and disabling
condition which affects people of all ages and for a
variety of reasons.

First of a Kind Nutrition Conference

Patients and staff gathered at the Moat House
Hotel in Stoke-on-Trent in October 2017 for a first
of its kind UHNM Nutrition and Dietician
conference. The conference was aimed at raising
awareness around promoting good nutrition and
healthy eating for patients and staff.

This conference was set up to celebrate and
showcase the diversity of dietetics here. We're
committed to educating our staff about some of the
frequently asked nutrition questions and also
highlighted how important nutrition can be in a
patient's recovery.

Children in Need Pudsey Visited

We were delighted to welcome Pudsey from BBC Children in

Need to Royal Stoke University Hospital.

He travelled around the hospital and met with |ots of children

and staff.

Photos were published via our Facebook page and our

Newsletter.

was a Success
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HRH the Duchess of Cornwall Visited

We were delighted to welcome HRH
The Duchess of Cornwall in
November 2017, who visited to learn
about the vital role the NHS plays in
tackling domestic abuse.

During the visit the Duchess met
UHNM staff and patients in Children's
A&E and Adult Minor Injuries on a
tour of A&E.

Safelives, a national domestic abuse
charity, and local charity, Arch, hosted
the Duchess on her visit. During the
visit, the Duchess spent time with
domestic abuse professionals from
the local service, specialist domestic
abuse charity Arch.

Her Royal Highness also met people affected personally by domestic abuse and took the time to talk to survivors as
well as those who have lost a loved one to domestic abuse.

Christmas Appeal for the Elderly

At Christmas we witnessed the grace and generosity of
the people of Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire.

It took us four weeks to count, sort and deliver all of the
presents donated to our Elderly Patients Christmas
Appeal but when we were done, Stoke-on-Trent and
Staffordshire had given our elderly patients 5,500
Christmas presents.

We were absolutely delighted with the response!
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Keep Stoke Smiling

Our Orthodontic team launched a #keepstokesmiling campaign
on. The team, who are internationally famous for producing nice
smiles, wanted to make sure the smiles match the good nature of
the people of Stoke. The five-strong consultant-led team have
treated thousands of children and adults from across the North
Midlands, transforming both their teeth and their lives.

The department strives for excellence and its motto of 'good
enough is not good enough' is very apparent when you visit the
clinic. They’ve covered the walls and display cabinets display with
certificates and trophies for the straightest teeth and perfect
smiles.

Happy Integration Day County Hospital!

Wednesday 1 November 2017,
marked the third year since County
Hospital was integrated into
University Hospitals of North
Midlands.

Happy |
Integration ¥,
Day

In that time County Hospital has
seen a wholesale transformation
following a record £47m investment
programme, which has enhanced
and improved patient care and
services. We produced an exclusive
County Celebration magazine to
highlight the fantastic work that has
gone on over the past three years at
County Hospital.

County Hospital
e 1

‘ - QO
Paula Clark, Chief Executive
25™ May 2018

36 Annual Report 2017/18



Part B: Accountability Report

B1 Corporate Governance Report

The Trust Board is responsible for the running of our Trust, setting its strategy and
overseeing the way it operates. The establishment of the Board is a Chairman and six
Non-Executive Directors along with six Executive Directors, who are full-time employees
of the Trust. A number of other Directors also sit with the Board but do not have voting
rights.

During 2017/18 and up to the signing of the Annual Report and Accounts, the composition of our Trust Board
included all Executive and Non-Executive Directors shown overleaf. The Chairman of the Trust between 1 April
2017 and 3 August 2017 was John MacDonald. Stephen Burgin then took up the role of Acting Chairman from 4
August 2017 for the remainder of the financial year.

Reporting directly into our Trust Board are five key committees, each Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive

Director. Details of Committee membership are shown overleaf, along with a description of any directorships or
other significant interests held.
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Directors Report — Voting Members of the Trust Board (Non-Executive)

John MacDonald, Chair
From August 2011 to August 2017

Stephen Burgin, Acting Chair (Non-Executive Director)
From September 2014 {Acting Chair August 17 to April 18)

Finance & Performance Committee (Chair)
Audit Committee {tempotarily stood down during period

Nomination & Remuneration Committee (Chair)

MacDconsult Ltd. providing management
consultancy services to the NHS,

Previous System Leader for the Staffordshire
Sustainability and Transformation Programme
Chair of Sherwood Forrest NHSFT

Andrew Smith, Non-Executive Director
From March 2012

~ Quality Assurance Comumittee (Chair)
Audit Committee
Nomination and Renwnerationt Committee

Sole Owner of Sund Sammen Ltd
Trustee of Ministry at Work, Frontline Dance

of Acting Chair)
Nomination & Remuneration Committee {Acting Chair]

Non-Executive Directar of Off Grid Energy Lld
Deputy President of French Chamber of Great Britaimn
Chair of South Staffardshire College

Directar / Co-Founder of IEl Group

Nicholas Young, Non-Executive Director

From September 2014

Professional Standards & Conduct
Committee (Chair)

Quality Assurance Committee
Charity Committee

Governor of Abbey Hill Sperial Schoo! WA None
Msc Student at keele University

Sonia Belfield, Non-Executive Director John Marlor, Non-Executive Director

From July 2016

Professional Standards & Conduct
Committee

Quality Assurance Committee
Nomination & Remuneration Committee

From September 2011

Charity Committee (Chair)

Audit Committee (Chair)

Finance & Performance Committee
Nomination & Remuneration Committee

HR and BoardDirector of Adient UK Ltd Trustee (Chair of Audit Committee} Catch22

Charitv Limited

Andy Hassell, Non-Executive Director
From April 2017

Quality Assurance Committee

Head of School of Medicine atKeele University
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Directors Report — Voting Members of the Trust Board (Executive)

Paula Clark, Chief Executive
From October 2016

Tru.s.t Executive Committee (Chair)

Trustee of NHS Providers.

Liz Rix, Chief Nurse
From August 2009

Trust Executive Committee
Quality Assurance Committee

Nothingto dedare.

Richard Beeken, Chief Operating Officer
From May 2017 to February 2018

Trust Executive Committee

Finance & Performance Cammittee

Quality Assurance Committee

Nothing to dedare.

Ro Vaughan, Director of Human Resources
From December 2014

Trust Executive Committee
Quality Assurance Committee
ProfessionalStandards & Conduct
Finance & Performance Committee

Governor atStoke on Trent College

Helen Ashley, Chief Officer ~ Finance & Performance
From January 2017

Trust Executive Committee
Finance & Performance Cornmittee

Nothingto declare.

John Oxtoby, Medical Director
From May 2017

Trust Executive Committee
Quality Assurance Committee
Professional Standards and Conduct

Director of Dawn River PLC

Married tc lulie Oxtoby, Vice Chair of North
Staffs GPS Fegeration
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B2. Annual Governance Statement (AGS) i

3.1 Scope of Responsibility

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the
achievement of the NHS trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the publicfunds and departmental
assets for which | am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. | am also
responsible for ensuring that the NHS trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are
applied efficiently and effectively. | also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Trust Accountable
Officer Memorandum.

3.2 The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identifyand prioritise the
risks to the achievement of our policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place for the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and accounts.

3.3 Capacity to Handle Risk

The Trust’s Risk Management Policy was rewritten during 2017/ 18 as part of an improvement programme entitled
‘Risk Management Improvement Collaborative’. This improvement programme focussed on five key objectives:

o Agreeing ‘key principles’ for Risk Management

¢ Revising the Risk Management Policy

e Strengthening the role and function of the Executive Risk Oversight Group

* Provision of education and training to support implementation of the revised Policy
¢ |mproving the quality of Risk Registers through direct support with Divisions

An ongoing programme of Risk Management Training, using a ‘workshop’ based approach is available to staff; whilst
opento all, thisis targeted at those with specificroles in risk assessment and management. The sessions are led by
the Corporate Governance Team. These ‘action based’ learning sessions walk candidates through the Risk
Management Process, giving clarity on all aspects of Risk Assessment with opportunities for group work to apply
learning. Evaluated feedback has proven this to be a successful approach.

An ongoing programme of quarterly audits has been established to monitorimplementation of the policy. These are
reported to the Executive Risk Oversight Group. Good practice is identified and shared with Risk Owners as a means
of providing ongoing support in implementing the Risk Management Policy.

Our risk management framework has been reviewed by ourInternal Auditors who have concluded their report with
a ‘significant assurance’ rating. Whilst this recognises the improvements that have been made, our key focus for
2018/19 will be around a refresh and further improvement to our Board Assurance Framework and processes to
ensure identification of risk are robust, which we expect will be reflected in anincrease in the number of risks on our
risk register.
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3.4 The Risk and Control Framework

Reporting Lines between the Board, its Committees and the Executive Team
The reporting lines between the Board and its Committees are illustrated below:

Trust Board

L L . .
ommatlorr & Quality Audit Finance & Professional Standards

Remuneration Assurance . Performance & Conduct Committ
Committee Committee Commitiee Committee EB o o

The Board comprises a Chair and six Non-Executive Directors. The Chief Executive is accountable to the Chairman
and there are six Executive Directors who are accountable directly to the Chief Executive.

Key Elements of the Risk Management Policy
The Risk Management Policy sets out a clear framework for the management of risk and includes a number of key

elements, which are described below.

The Risk Management Policy sets out a ‘dual’ approach to the identification of risk:

e Proactive riskidentification focuses on our objectives with consideration given to any risks which may threaten
achievement of those objectives

s Reactive risk identification is undertaken in the event of an adverse incident or ongoing issue and provides
opportunity to consider and to identify future risk {i.e. recurrence of an adverse incident)

Evaluation of risk is undertaken through utilisation of a risk scoring matrix. We use the National Patient Safety
Agency tool, which we have modified slightly in respect of information security. Riskis evaluated usingthe following
components of scoring:

» Likelihood of the event occurring

* Impact or consequence of the event occurring

Control ofrrisk is undertaken through the implementation of ‘risk reduction action plans’. Controls are described as
any measure designed to reduce likelihood and / or impact of risk. These are monitored as part of the Risk Register
and in accordance with our risk escalation, oversight and reporting framework.

Setting an agreed risk appetite is the responsibility of the Trust Board. A Trust Board Seminar was held in January
2018, which engaged Board members in the development of a Risk Appetite Statement, to be used alongside the
Board Assurance Framework {BAF) during 2018/19.

Performance Management

Performance information is assessed at a variety of levels throughout the organisation. The Trust Board receive a
monthly Integrated Performance Report coveringall aspects of performance under the headings of Finance, Quality,
Workforce and Operational Delivery. In addition, specific performance related reports in respect of finance, quality
and workforce are scrutinised by the Board. The Integrated Performance Report is also presented to the Finance &
Performance Committee and executively at the Trust Executive Committee.

Our Performance Management Framework is well established, with monthly Performance Management Reviews
held with each of the four clinical divisions each month. These are chaired by the Chief Executive, with an Executive
Review Panel comprising the Chief Operating Officer, Chief Nurse, Medical Director, Director of Human Resources
and Director of Business Development. Divisional Management Teams also hold Performance Management Reviews
with each of their Directorates.
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Quality Governance Arrangements
Our Corporate Quality Governance structure is well established and embedded, with multidisciplinary engagement
across the organisation. The following provides an illustration of this structure:

Trust Board

Quality Assurance Professional Standards &

i — Committee Conduct Committee

Perf !
i ‘ormance
i Management I l

Reviews |
(B == T e Quality & Safety
Forum

| |

Specialist Quality

Divisional Quality Groups (e.g. Falls,
Govemance Groups Medications,
Mortality etc)

During the year our Internal Auditors reviewed our Divisional Governance arrangements and in particular their
application of our ‘Divisional Rules of Procedure’. Whilst it was recognised that the Rules of Procedure provide a
clear governance framework for our Divisions, it was clear that the framework is not yet being universally applied
and that there is a need for us to review the effectiveness of these structures and to ensure that duplication is
removed. Inview of this, we will be revisiting ourgovernance arrangements in order to address the findings of this
review.

Data Quality
Our Data Quality Team have a suite of reports to assure that risks to the quality and accuracy of our data are
minimised and our Internal Auditors conduct annual audits, which provide us with a source of assurance.

However, we have faced particular difficulties with the accuracy and reliability of our elective waiting list information
following the ‘go live’ of our new IT system in 2016/17. This has presented data quality concerns around the
reporting of our 18 week Referral to Treatmentinformation. We have been in dialogue with our regulators around
this issue and have a programme of work in place to improve the quality of reporting.

Risks associated with the accuracy and reliability of our elective waiting list information are featured within our
Corporate Risk Register and are being managed in accordance with our Risk Management Policy.

Care Excellence Framework (CEF)

Our Care Excellence Framework (CEF) is the means by which assurance on compliance with Care Quality Commission
standards is obtained on a routine basis. The CEF is a unique, integrated tool of measurement, clinical observations,
patient and staff interviews, benchmarking and improvement. |t is an internal accreditation system providing
assurance from ward to board around the CQC domains of Caring, Safety, Effectiveness, Responsive and Well Led.
The framework provides an award system foreach domain and an overall award forthe ward / department based on
evidence.

The CEF is supported by a bespoke IT system, acting as a data warehouse to store a suite of measures, with the
ability totriangulate and present high level and granularinformation at ward/departmentallevel therefore ensuring
that ward visits are intelligence driven and tailored. Managers are able to interrogate the system and benchmark
themselves against others. The measures provide robust information toidentify areas forimprovement and areas of
good practice. The clinical area is supported to develop and deliver a bespoke improvement plan and spread good
practice.
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Every ward has at least one Excellence visit peryear reviewing all domains and receives ad hoc visits throughout the
year to seek assurance with regards to individual domains. The CEF is delivered in a supportive style fostering a
culture of learning, sharing and improving, and reward and recognition for achievement. The IT system
demonstrates improvements and trends over time and helps to benchmark and spread excellence across the
organisation.

Ahead of our inspection by the Care Quality Commission, our Internal Auditors undertook a readiness assessment,
which was undertaken in the format of a ‘mock-inspection’. This review recognised that the CEF aims to improve
and standardise services and confirmed that wards and departments were able to describe their rating and plans for
improvement. The review concluded with an assurance rating of ‘Significant Assurance with Minor Improvements’,
which was reported to our Audit Committee.

The Care Quality Commission recognised the CEF as a ‘robust quality improvement process which had been fully
embedded and was driving improvements and encouraging excellence in all areas’.

We are fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission.

Risks to Data Security

Our Information Security Policy sets out high level guidance intended to preserve aspects of ourinformation and our
information systems, including confidentiality, integrity and availability. The Information Security Policy is part of a
collective assurance framework which is used in conjunction with a range of other policy.

Breachesininformation security are regarded as adverse incidents and are managed and monitored in accordance
with our Incident Reporting Policy. Future risks associated with Information Security are included on our Risk
Register and are managed in accordance with our Risk Management Policy.

The Information Governance Steering Group, responsible for oversight of our compliance with the Information
Governance Toolkit, has responsibility for overseeing mitigation of risks relating to information security.

Significant Risks

Significant risks are identified in accordance with our Risk Management Policy and are overseen by the Trust Board
and its Committees through the Board Assurance Framework. Significant risks are defined as those which would
threaten the achievement of our Strategic Objectives and are captured within our Board Assurance Framework. Risk
assessments are updated regularly and at least on a quarterly basis, reflecting both in year and future risks. Risk
Assessments include clear risk reduction plans which identify the actions that will reduce their likelihood and / or
impact alongside the individuals responsible fortaking action. The risks identified below provide asummary of those
set out within our Board Assurance Framework:

Strategic Objective 1: Provide safe, effective, caring and responsive services
Summary of Risk

¢ Implementation ofthe Local Health Economy System Led Review {by CQC)
Action Plan.

*» Reviewoffeedbackfrom independent external reviews andidentification
of further actions to be taken.

Uncontrolleddemandforour services,
exceedingcapacity, which may
compromise quality of care

Availability of s ufficiently trained clinical
workforce, which may compromise
quality of service provision

‘Escalation areas’ being open as a result
of increased demand and our abilityto
staff theseareas sufficiently

To enhance the reporting ca pabilityto coverallareasas the current report only
covers ward staffingand reflects nursing and midwifery.

Undertake review of staffinglevels on nursing staffand less frequentyfor
othergroups.

Summary of Risk

* Reviewof UHNMandLHE escalation and winter plans on-going with A&E
Delivery Board.

e  Patient Safety Summit with ED MDT to be organised.

*«  The outcome of the Patient Safety Summit will be discussed atthe next or
an extraordinary QAC.

Overcrowding within our emergency
portals compromisingpatient flow
through the organisation
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s A&E DeliveryBoardto formallyevaluate the Winter Plan Schemes and
whether they have mitigated risks.

«  Continued implementation and review of warkforce plans and Divisional
recruitment strategies.

* Reduction ofagency/ locum usage balanced with clinical safetyacross all
areas.

e Approval of ED Workforce Strategy and Acute Medicine Strategy.

e  Continued work on LHE capacity planningwith partners via A&E Delivery
Board to work to close capacity deficits in and out of hospital.

e Resetting evidence based discharge targets per dayfor the LHE.

s  Continued rollout of the ITV programme and assodated business cases.
31/3/18

o  Developmentof Performance Management Processes around Planned
Care Recovery through the AD role.

»  As partofthe Annual Planning Process, implementation of the IST demand

eciali

Strategic Objective 3: Achieve excellence in employment, education, development and research

Availability of appropriately trained
medical staffingto deliveranoptimal
service

Abilityto discharge / transfer medically
fitpatientsin a timelymanner as a result
of insufficient community care capacity

Capacityversus demand for elective care
to achieve the Referral to Treatment
(RTT) constitutional standard

Summary of Risk Risk Level Key Actions

Levels of staff turnover and ability to

recruit which may impact upon Moderate 6 No furtheraction at present unless thereis a changeinthedata/ trends.
sustainability of some services

Promotion of education and research + Toimprovereporting to the Trust Board via bi-annual undergraduate
opportunitieswhich enable us to attract Moderate 6 report

and retain staff s Tointroduce reporting from Postgraduate Trainingto the Trust Board
Strategic Objective 4: Lead strategic change within Staffordshire and beyond

Summary of Risk | RiskLevel | Key Actions

Improvements in productivity to achieve
our Financial Recovery Plan (FRP)
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s)
unable to repatriate workleading to an
inability to increase activity and
associated income levels
HealthandSocialCare being unable to
provide admission avoidance schemes
leadingto ablockage in our resources
Multi-service Community Providers not
leading to the development of robust
community services

To provide sufficient resources to Divisions inorder to implement
responsihilitiesover and above dayto dayrequirements

To work with the STP to develop planned care networks

s To provide accurate data as to what the demandin hospital is
»  ToensurethatRed2Green operates optimally.

To provide support of acute expertise to other Alliance Boards once established

Strategic Objective 5: Ensure efficient use of resources
Summary of Risk Risk Level Key Actions
Services not being delivered within
agreed budgets leading to aninability to
achieve the Financial Plan

Governance associated with C3 Panel to be enhanced from mid-February 2018
onwards.

NHSI Well Led Framework
In Octoberand November 2017 the Good Governance Institute undertook an assessment as towhether our services
are well led in accordance with NHS Improvement’s Well Led Framework. The findings were positive, with some
themed areas identified for further development. These have been used by the Board to shape its improvement
priorities, with work around strategy development and integrated performance reporting already underway at the
end of the financial year 2017/18.

Following our inspection by the Care Quality Commission, we received animproved rating of ‘good’ for the Well Led
domain. They found that there was a positive culture that supported and valued staff with a sense of common
purpose and a focus on patient quality and safety. They found that managers at all levels had the right skills and
abilities; that governance systems were well embedded with a systematic approach to monitoring and they found
services to be well engaged with staff and the public.

However, they found that staff within theatres felt less engaged and supported than other areas of the organisation
and so this is a key area of focus for our Organisational Development plan.

44 Annual Report 2017/18



Incident Reporting

Our Policy for Reporting and Management of Incidents aims to provide, so far as is reasonable practicable, an
environment which is free from risks to health and safety. Our staff are required to behave in a manner which will
not pose a risk to their or anyone else’s health and safety.

Our policy is designed to openly encourage that all adverse incidents and near miss events are promptly reported,
accurately documented, properly investigated and any learning shared and acted upon. Serious Incidents where
there are opportunities for Trust wide learning are reviewed by our Risk Management Panel which is chaired by our
Deputy Medical Director. Analysis and trends associated with adverse incident reporting is monitored at various
levels within our quality governance framework, including a high level analysis to the Trust Board.

In July 2017, our Internal Auditors reported on our processes with regard to the management of Serious Incidents
and assessed whetherour policies were effective for staff to respond to a Serious Incident. The report identified a
number of areas for improvement associated with incident reporting and investigation, policies, ensuring that
lessons are learned, monitoring and reporting of Key Performance Indicators and training. Whilst work has been
undertaken to make improvements in theseareas during 2017/18, this continues to be a key area of focus going into
2018/19.

NHS Provider Licence ’

The principal risks to compliance with the NHS providerlicence are in relation to ourfinancial position and these are
reflected within our Risk Register and Board Assurance Framework. We have developed a Financial Recovery Plan
(FRP) which sets out how we will mitigate those risks and bring the organisation back into financial balance. The
Finance and Performance Committee and the Recovery Programme Board have a key role in oversight of the FRP
and ongoing scrutiny by ourregulators at NHS Improvement continues in accordance with the requirements of being
in Financial Special Measures.

In our annual declaration against the NHS Provider Licence, the Board has reflected on a number of significant
challengesin respect of our constitutional targets; the impact of non-achievement of the 62 day cancer standard, 4
hour wait and Referral to Treatment. In addition to this the Trust Board recognises the implications of our
significantly challenged financial position which has resulted in us being placed into Financial Special Measures and
has therefore taken a decision that we have not met the requirements of our licence and must ensure a robust
approach to operational and financial recovery.

Equality Impact Assessments

Our Equality and Diversity Policy aims to promote equality and diversity and value the benefits this brings. It is our
aimto ensure that all staff feel valued and have afair and equitable quality of working life. Equal opportunities and
the embracing of diversity are central to everything we do as an organisation to create a workplace in which people
feel valued, treating people fairly and with dignity and respect at all stages of the employment process from
recruitment to termination of employment; access to learning and development and career progression.

Our policy ensures that Equality Impact Assessments are integrated into core Trust business, including on services,
organisation change and on appropriate policies/procedures. These are monitored by ourHuman Resources
Directorate.

NHS Pension Scheme

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in place to
ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring
that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the
Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the timescales
detailed in the Regulations.

Control measures are in place to ensure that all the orgamsatlon s obligations under equality, diversity and human
rights legislation are complied with.

45 Annual Report 2017/18



Sustainability

We have undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans are in place in accordance with
emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure
that this organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are
complied with.

3.5 Review of Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness of the Use of Resources

In 2017/18 the Board agreed a financial plan with NHSI to deliver a year end deficit of £68.9m. Within this the plan
we were required to achieve CIP savings of £50m and would receive £24.8m of Deficit Support and a refund of
contractual fines of c£10m.

As we came intothe financial year, we were issued with formal notification from NHSI that we had been placed into
Financial Special Measures because although we had agreed a control total within the plan, there was a significant
negative variance against the control total plan with alarge deficit being forecast. NHSI outlined particular concerns
in relation to the size of the planned 2017/18 deficit.

At the end of the financial year the Trust has a deficit of £71.3m against the planned deficit of £68.9m. The
deterioration in the position was mainly due to the cost of additional capacity and lost elective activity over Winter
totalling £7.8m, which was partly mitigated by national funding for the costs of Winter at £2.1m. Additional
mitigation came from the over achievement of CIP schemes.

The Trust set itself a challenging CIP target for 2017/18 of £50m, equal to 6.5% of costs in the plan. The Trust was
able to make £52.6m of savings in year. The main areas of savings in year related to reductions in workforce
expenditure, specifically from premium pay reductions and skill mix efficie ncies. Improvements were also made in
clinical optimisation schemes, various income opportunities, and efficiencies from procurement and other non -pay
savings.

Being placed into Financial Special Measures meant that a number of requirements were placed upon usincluding; a
rapid diagnostic assessment to understand the underlying causes of our deficit, development and Board approval of
a Financial Recovery Plan, intense oversight by NHSI of our activities and progress for the duration of being in
Financial Special Measures and the appointment by NHSI of a Financial Improvement Director to oversee progress,
provide challenge as appropriate and to determine further actions required.

In addition to measures outlined above, our existing governance framework, starting with the Board, performs an
integral role in maintaining the system of internal control, supported by the Board Committees and internal and
external audit.

The Finance & Performance Committee, chaired by aNon-Executive Director plays a key role oversight, scrutiny and
seeking assurance in relation to ensuring economy, efficiency and effective use of resources. The Finance &
Performance Committee reports directly to the Board after each meeting. The Audit Committee is responsible for
reviewingthe establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated governance, risk management
and internal control. In addition, a Recovery Programme Board has been established to provide specific oversight
and scrutiny of the delivery of our Cost Improvement Programme.

The Internal Audit Plan is agreed by the Audit Committee and is focused on key risk areas, identified through the
Board Assurance Framework and via escalation processes from other board committees. Follow up audits are also
included in the plan to ensure that actions are implemented and improvements sustained.

Our external auditors give an expert and independent opinion on whether our financial statements are a true and
fair view of the Trust’s financial position at the end of the financial year. They also provide an expert and
independent opinion on whether the financial statements comply with relevant laws. In carrying out their audit,
they must have regard to aspects of corporate governance and securing economy, efficiency and e ffective use of
resources.
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During 2017/18 the Board has continued toreceive a quarterly report on Key Performance Indicators. This includes
trend data on a number of measures of efficiency and use of resources such as the sickness absence, bank usage,
external agency usage, vacancy rates, delayed transfers of care and letter turnaround times. Reporting is by
exception and focusses on the key areas of risk to achievement of targets, particularly in relation to NHSI’s Single
Oversight Framework (SOF).

3.6 Information Governance

All information governance breaches are reported via our incident management system. The Information
Governance Team continues to monitorand review incidents to ensure these are investigated and where deemed
serious, aroot cause analysis is undertaken. From April 2017 to March 2018 the Information Commissioner’s Office
(1ICO) was informed of a serious data breach relating to a subject access request. The request for the set of patient
notes was processed accordingly. However, on receipt of the notes the recipient identified another set of notes had
been incorrectly attached. The 1CO has written to the Trust requesting further information.

3.7 Annual Quality Account

The directors are required underthe Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations
2010 (as amended) to pre pare Quality Accounts foreach financial year. In order to ensure that our Quality Account
presents abalanced view, we engage internal and external stakeholders inits developm ent before presenting to the
Quality Assurance Committee who will provide furtherscrutiny. The Quality Accountis subject to external audit with
the findings being shared as a source of assurance to the Audit Committee.

As with all of our performance data, controls are in place to ensure the quality and accuracy of information, which
includes pre-validation, data quality review and Executive sign off. During the year, our Internal Auditors have
undertaken a specific review of our elective waiting time data.

3.8 Review of Effectiveness

KPMG LLP were appointed as our Internal Auditors as of 29 July 2016. The objectives as set out in the Internal Audit
Planinclude ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources and this consideration is applied across
all of the work streams carried out. The findings of internal audit are reported to the Board through the Audit
Committee and any recommendations arising from internalauditare tracked centrally to ensure that they are acted
upon,.

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. My
review isinformed by the work of the Internal Auditors, clinical audit and the executive directors and clinical leads
within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework. |
have drawn on the content of the Quality Account and other performance information available to me. My review is
also informed by comments made by the External Auditors in their annual audit letter.

I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal

control by the Board, Audit Committee, Internal Audit and External Audit. The system of internal control is reviewed

and plans to address any identified weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system are put in place.

The process applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control includes:

e The maintenance of a view of the overall position with regard to internal control by the Board through its
routine reporting processes and its work on corporate risks;

e Review of the Board Assurance Framework and Risk Management and the receipt of internal and external reports
on the Trust’s internal control processes by the Audit Committee;

e Personal input into the controls and risk management processes from all Executive Directors and senior
managers and individual clinicians; and

47 Annual Report 2017/18



» Quarterly reports from the Quality, Safety and Compliance Department regarding national and local audit.

The Board’s review of the risk and internal control framework is supported by the Head of Internal Audit Opinion,
which provides me with an opinion on the overall arrangements for gaining assurance through the Board Assurance
Framework and on the controls reviewed as part of internal audit’s work.

The Head of Internal Opinion on the overalladequacy and effectiveness of the Trust’s framework of governance, risk
management and control has given partial assurance for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

Internal Audit produce an annual risk basedaudit plan, which included the Executive team actively considering areas
where there were either potential or known issues to incorporate. The Board Assurance and Risk Management
review has contributed to the Trust’s Risk Management Improvement Programme, which is described within this
report. Itis appropriate tofocus on the use of Internal Audit resources on such areas and this has allowedthe Trustto
identify further issues and leverage best practice from other organisations.

They provide reports on a number of areas, specifically highlighting the potential risks have inf ormed their work and
opinions. For the financial year 2017/18, our Internal Auditors have issued four reports concluding with ‘partial
assurance with improvements required’ (amber-red) and ‘no assurance’ (red). These conclusions included 18 high
priority recommendations which are being used to inform our improvement programme for 2018/19.

o Treatment Initiative Payments (Waiting List Payments)

¢  Serious Incident Reporting

e Divisional Governance

»  Financial Systems

In addition to this, ourInternal Auditors have undertaken some ‘advisory reviews’ in respect of data quality. These
have provided us with a more indepth understanding of the completeness of our data quality issues and are being
used to shape and inform our improvement plan going forward.

3.9 Conclusion

As outlined within this report, there have been some key achievements during the year, particularly around our
quality standards forinfection prevention and VTE assessment, improvements to our risk management processes,
our Care Excellence Framework process and achievement of Outstanding for Care in our inspection by the Care
Quality Commission. However, we have continued to experience major issues in respect of our financial position,
data quality and in particular the validation required to determine our position with regard to the Referral to
Treatment target. We have been unable to achieve the 62 day cancer standard and have been unable to achieve the

4 hour target for our Emergency Department.

Paula Clark
Chief Executive
25" May 2018
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B3 Statement of the Chief Executive’s Responsibilities as

the Accountable Officer of the Trust

The Secretary of State has directed the Chief Executive as
Accountable Officer to prepare for each financial year a
statement of accounts as set out in the Accounts Direction.
The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs at University Hospitals of
North Midlands NHS Trust and of its net resource outturn,
application of resources and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, the Accountable Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the Government Financial

Reporting Manual an in particular to:

*  Observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department of Health, including the relevant accounting and disclosure
requirements and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;

e Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

e  State whether applicableaccountingstandardsas setout within the manual have been followed and disclose and explain
any material departures in the financial statements; and

e Preparethe financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer, including the responsibility for the propriety and regularity of the public
finances for which the Accountable Officer is answerable, for keeping proper records and for safeguarding University Hospital s
of North Midlands NHS Trust's assets, are set out in Managing Public Money published HM Treasury.

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the NHS Trust Development Authority, has

designated that the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Officer of the Trust. The relevant responsibilities of

Accountable Officers are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum. These include ensuring that:

s there are effective management systems in placeto safeguard public funds and assets and assist in the implementation of
corporate governance

* valuefor money is achieved from the resources available to the Trust

e the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and conform to the
authorities which govern them

o effective and sound financial management systems arein place; and

* annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash
flows for the year.

I, as Accountable Officer, can confirm that, as far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
auditors are unaware. To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in
my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.

In producing this Annual Report, all Directors and | have taken the necessary steps required to make ourselves aware of
any relevant information and to establish that the Trust’s auditors are aware of that information. In addition, I can
confirm that this Annual Report and Accounts as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable. 1 take responsibility for

the judgment required in determining that these are fair, balanced and understandable.

Paula Clark, Chief Executive
25" May 2018
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B4 Remuneration and Staff Report

4.1 Remuneration Policy

Remuneration and terms of service for Executive
Directors (i.e. Board voting and non-voting members),
the Chief Executive and posts assigned to the ‘Very Senior
Manager framework’ are agreed, and kept under review
by the Trust Nominations and Remuneration Committee.
This Committee monitors and evaluates the annual
performance of individual directors, with the advice of
the Chief Executive.

The annual work programme forthe Committee includes an evidence based review and benchmarking of Executive
Directorsalaries in comparison to national lower and upper quartile benchmarks. This exercise is undertaken in
orderto maintain awareness of arrangements in other organisations, which may be of relevance and any changes
to Executive Director salaries are considered by the Committee on receipt of this information.

Wherethere isa vacancy in a permanently established post, it is usual practice to make a permanent appointment.
All senior managers have a notice period of three months and Executive Directors have a notice period of six
months. Non-Executive Directors are appointed with NHS Improvement on fixed-term contracts, which may be
renewed. Compensation forearly termination of Executive Directors provides payment in lieu of notice, except in
cases of summary/ immediate dismissal. Any termination payments which fall outside the standard provisions of
the Contract of Employment must be approved internally by the Committee. Severance packages which fall outside
the standard provisions of the Contract of Employment must be calculated using standard guidelines and any
proposal to make payments outside of the current guidelines are subject to the approval of HM Treasury, via NHS
Improvement.

4.2 Remuneration Salaries and Allowances

The table below sets out the amounts awarded to all Board members and where relevant, the link between
performance and remuneration.

There have been no performance pay or bonuses paid to any of the Directors in eitherfinancial year.

The remuneration information disclosed in the tables 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 and 4.8 below have been subject to audit.
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‘Board Member

Current Board Members:
Paula Clark

Chief Executive

Liz Rix

Chief Nurse

Ro Vaughan

Director of HR

Helen Ashley

Chief Officer — Finance &
Performance

John Oxtoby

Medical Director
Stephen Burgin
Non-Executive Director
Andrew Smith
Non-Executive Director
Jean Challiner
Non-Executive Director
John Marlor
Non-Executive Director
Nicholas Young
Non-Executive Director
Sonia Belfield
Non-Executive Director
Andrew Hassell
Non-Executive Director

Previous Board

Members:

Robert Courteney-Harris

Medical Director /

Deputy / Acting Chief

Executive

Sarah Preston

Director of Finance

John MacDonald

Chairman (to 30/08/17)

Helen Lingham

Chief Operating Officer

David Donegan

Chief Operating Officer

Richard Beeken

Chief Operating Officer

Robert Collins

Non-Executive Director

Andrew Garner

Non-Executive Director

David Simons

Non-Executive Director

2016/17

Expense All

Payments ension
SR e
£5000 n?e : resot Ba :gs of £4000

£100 £2500
120-125 42 12.5-15.0 135-140
145-150 - 375-40.0 185-190
120-125 - 525-55.0 175-180
35-40 - 27.5-30.0 65-70
115-120 - 0.0-25 115-120
5-10 - - 5-10
5-10 - - 5-10
5-10 - - 5-10
5-10 - - 5-10
5-10 - - 5-10
0-5 - - 0-5
215-220 - 30.0-32.5 250-255
95-100 - 20.0-225 115-120
35-40 - 0.0-25 35-40
115-120 = 10.0-12.5 125-130
140-145 = 0.0-2.5 140-145
120-125 - - <
0-5 - - 0-5
5-10 - - 5-10
0-5 - = 0-5

Salary
Bands of
£5000

195-200
150-155

125-130

155-160

215-220
25-30
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10

5-10

10-15

120-125

2017/18
Expense All
Payments ‘pension
(taxable) related
total to benefits
nearest Bands of
- £100 £2500

7.5-10.0

25.0-275
37.5-40.0

20.0-22.5

Total:
Bands of
£5000

195-200

160-165

150-155

195-200

235-240

25-30

5-10

5-10

5-10

5-10

5-10

10-15
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4.3 Exit Packages for Staff Leaving in 2017/18

« Redundancyand otherdeparture costs have been paid in accordance with standard NHS terms and conditions
» Thisdisclosure reports the numberand value of exit packages agreed with staff during the year.

2016/17 2017/18
Total |
e A o Nl T
departures  packeges T departures  packages by
sgreed by cost agreed |cost band
band

Number of

Exit Package Cost Band (including arty

special payment element) compulsory

redundancies

Less than £10,000 2 0 2 2 17 19
£10,001-£25,000 2 0 2 4 10 14
£25,001-£50,000 1 0 1. 1 9 10
£50,001-£100,000 0 0 0 1 2 3
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,001 - £200,000 0 0 0] 0 0 0
>£200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total number of exit packages by 8 38 46
type 5 0 5

Total resource cost (£'000) 87 - 87 184 732 916

4.4 Pensions

2017/2018
Lump
sum at
_ Real age 60 Cash Real Cash Emplayers
Real increase  Increase / related Equivalent  Increaseln  Equivalent ributh
| . [/ (décreass) (decrease) to Transfer Cash Transfer S -
Board Member . | r to
- Inpensionat  Inpension accrued  Valueasat  Equivalent  Valueasat stakeholde
Bge 60 lump sum pension 31 March Transfer 31 March ' i
atage 60 at31® 2017 Value 2018 peee
Bands of
£2,500
Liz Rix
Chief Nurse 0-25 2.5-5 55-60 170-175 1,053 66 1,150
John Oxtoby
Medical Director/ 0-2.5 5-7.5 55-60 170-175 1,159 78 1,269
(Deputy)
Ly 2.5-5 5-7.5 50-55  160-165 1,007 76 1,116
Director of HR : : - !
Helen Ashley
Chief Officer—
Finance & 2.5-5 0-2.5 50-55 135-140 824 33 888
Performance
*Richard Beeken
Chief Operating 45-50 115-120 740
Officer X

*  As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for
Non-Executive members.
s The pensions information disclosed in the table above has been subject to audit.

*There are no opening figures available for Richard Beeken and therefore we have been unable to recalculate thereal increases
in his pension, lump sum and CETV
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A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits
accrued by a memberat a particular pointin time. The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any
contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or
arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a
scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to
the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of theirtotal membership of the pension scheme, not
just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other pension details
include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme orarrangement which the individual has transferred to
the NHS pension scheme. Theyalso include any additional pension benefit accrued to the memberas a result of their
purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the
guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Real Increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. This calculation does not take
account of any increase due to inflation or contributions paid by the employee.

4.5 Pay Multiples

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid directorin
theirorganisation and the median remuneration of the organisation's workforce. The banded remuneration of the
highest paid director in the Trust in the financial year 2017/18 was £215,000 to £220,000 (2016/17 was £240,000 to
£245,000). Thisis based on a full time equivalent, annualised calculation. This was 8 times (2016/17: 9 times) more
than the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £ 26,848 (2016/17 was £26,945). 13 employees
(2016/17 seven employees) received remuneration in excess of the highest paid director. The Range of staff
remuneration during 2017/18 was £0 - £5,000 to £295,000 - £300,000 (2016/17 £0 - £5,000 to £325,000 - £330,000).
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind. It does not include
employer pension contributions, the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions or severance payments.
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4.6 Staff Report

As a large acute Trust we face many challenges. In order to
meet those challenges and seize opportunities for the future it
is essential that we have the right people in the right jobs with
the right skills mix at the right time. Our People Strategy
supports all that we do to attract, recruit, develop, retain,
support and reward our staff and teams to meet our future
goals and aspirations. The Human Resources Department has a
major role in driving the people agenda but it requires each
and every one of us to play our part in making UHNM a great Ro Vaughan

and successful place to work. Director of Human Resources

Our Workforce

At 31 March 2018, we had a workforce of 9,548.33 WTE
(10,871 headcount). This is excluding Bank Staff and Honorary
contracts. Our staffing is made up of a variety of roles and
payscales. This section provides you with an overview of our
workforce.

Senior Managers
Analysis of oursenior managers is listed below:

Headcount
payscale  Female Male Female  Male
Band 8a 55 32 53.26 31.80
Band 8b 21 12 21.00 12.00
Band 8c 9 6 8.92 6.00
Band 8d 7 5 6.11 5.00
Band 9 5 4 5.00 4.00
Director 8 3 8.00 2.80
Staff Numbers
1 Full Time Equivalents (WTE)

Jaiticroll Permanent Other Total
Professional Scientific and Technical 34410 10.68 354.78
Clinical Services 2120.12 56.82 2176.94
Administrativeand Clerical 1677.54 95.86 1773.40
Allied Health Professionals 448.20 5.91 454.11
Estates and Ancillary 455.81 7.21 463.02
HealthcareScientists 284.62 5.81 290.43
Medical and Dental 549.90 542.68 1092.58
Nursing and Midwifery Registered 2884.16 54.89 2939.05
Students 4.00 4.00

Grand total: 8764.46 783.86 9548.32

*excludes bank, agency and staff out on secondment.
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Staff Composition

Part Time Full Time
platioroup Male Female Male Female Fotal
Director 1 0 1 7 9
Senior Managers (Band 8a —9) 8 89 123 260 480
Other employees 366 3849 1860 4307 10382

Sickness Absence
The sickness rate at 31 March 2018 (cumulative for the 12 months from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018) was 4.33%.

Staff Policies applied during the Financial Year

Our People Strategy outlines how we will lead and support staff to achieve our 2025Vision and sets out our aims to provide a
positive work environment that promotes an open, supportiveandfair culturewhich helps our staff to do their job to the bes t of
their ability and ensure delivery of high quality care.

We have a number of policies in place to ensure that as an organisation, we fulfil our obligations under equality, diversity and
human rights legislation. We want staff to work to the very highest standards, to be able to communicate openly in an
organisation which respects people’s views, and values individuals and teams. We encourage and recognise high performancein
a results-driven environment and will support individual and team development to deliver the organisations goals.

We know that excellent staff experience leads to excellent patient experience and improved patient outcomes. The People
Strategy is supported by the Trust's workforce plan, and is aligned to both the learning and education strategy and the
organisational development strategy.

We operate a full suite of HR policies, 47 in total, covering the whole employee life cycle. These can be made available to the
public and our website http://www.uhnm.nhs.uk, provides guidance on how to access them.

e HRO8 Recruitment and Selection Policy: We believe that unlawful discrimination is unacceptable and we are committed to
recruiting staff in accordancewith our Equality and Diversity Policy. Applicants are selected solely on objective, job related
criteria and their ability to do the job applied for with no discrimination on the grounds of ethnic origin, nationality,
disability, gender, gender reassignment, marital status, age, sexual orientation, trade union activity or political or religious
beliefs. We provide appropriate assistance to ensure equality for all.

e For Appointments Advisory Committees to recruit to permanent Consultant posts, all members of the panel are required to
have received training in Equal Opportunities.

e HS17 Occupational Health Policy - The role of occupational health is to help protect and promote the health and wellbeing
of staff in the workplace. Workplace Health Assessment checks are also carried out to provide advice to managers, where
necessary, on employee needs or any reasonable adjustments required to the work environment or structure in accordance
with the Equality Act 2010.

e HR12 Equality and Diversity Policy: As a major employer and service provider we are committed to building a workforce
which is valued and whose diversity reflects the community it serves, enabling it to deliver the best possible healthcare
service to those communities

e Appropriate mandatory training is provided to ensure that staff and managers understand their responsibilities under the
Policy. Equality, diversity and inclusion themes are integrated into other Trust learning and development programmes as
appropriate

e The principles of the Equal Opportunities Policy are incorporated into the Trust’s Corporate Induction course and included
inall localinduction packages for newly appointed employees. This is also included in statutory and mandatory training as
outlined in Trust policy HRS3 Statutory, Mandatory and Best Practice and the Training Needs Analysis. All training should
be recorded within staff personal record ideally on our electronic staff record.
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4.7 Consultancy

Expenditure on consultancy services for the year 2017/18 was £5.4m for, compared to £5.8min 2016/17

4.8 Off Payroll Engagements

As part of the Treasury's Annual Reporting Guidance 2012-13, Government Departments are required to report information
relating to off-payroll engagements. Therefore NHS bodies are required to include information on any such engagements
allowing for consolidation.

For all off-payrol! engagements as of 31 March 2018, for more than £245 per day and that last longer than six months:

All existing off-payroll
Off Payroll Engagement Longer than 6 Months Number engagements have at some point
been subject to a risk based
assessment as to  whether
assurance is required that the
individual is paying the right
amount of tax.

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2018 0
Of which, the number that have existed:
for less than one year at the time of reporting
for between one and two years at the time of reporting
for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting
for between 3 and4 years at the time of reporting
for 4 or more years at the time of reporting

c oocCccC

For all new off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018, for
more than £245 per day and that last longer than six months:

New Off-payroll Engagements Number

No. of new engagements, or those that reached six months in

duration, between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 =
Of which, the number that have existed:

No. assessed as caughtbyIR35 0
No. assessed as notcaught by IR36 3
No. engaged directly (via PSC contracted to department) andare on 0
the departmental payroll

No. engagements reassessed for consistency/assurance purposes 0
duringthe year

No. engagements that sawa change to IR35 status followingthe 0

consistencyreview

Confirmation that all existing off-payroll engagements have at some point been subjectto arisk based assessmentas to whether
assuranceisrequired that the individual is paying the rightamount of tax and, where necessary, that assurancehas been
sought.
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B5 The Modern Slavery Act 2015

Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 requires our

organisation to prepare a ‘slavery and human trafficking
statement’ for each financial year, setting out the steps that have =~ MODERN SLAVERY ACT
been taken during the year to ensure that slavery and human

trafficking is not taking place in its supply chains or its own

business.

Anti-Slavery Statement

This statement, made pursuant to section 54(1) of the Modern Slavery Act 2015, sets out the approach taken by University
Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust to understand all potential modern slavery risks related to its business, and the actions
undertaken to mitigate any such risks during the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Our Board is committed to delivering high standards of corporate governance and a key element of this is managi ng the Trustin
a socially responsible way. We are committed to preventing slavery and human trafficking in our corporate activities and
through our supply chains and we expect the same high standards from those parties with whom we engage. During the course
of the year, we have emphasised our commitment through a number of mechanisms:

Recruitment and Selection
Our policies and procedures in relation to recruitment and selection of staff ensure that we comply with all employment,
equalities and human rights legislation. This includes the prevention of slavery and human trafficking.

Safeguarding Arrangements

Modern Slavery was identified as a separate category of abuse in the Care Act 2014 and as such sits within our safeguarding
agenda for adults who have care and support needs. Our policy and procedures in relation to safeguarding refer to Modern
Slaveryincluding Human Traffickingand identifies possible indicators for staff to lookout for and sets out the procedure of how
to raise safeguarding concerns.

We deliver mandatory safeguarding awareness training to all staff which includes identifying Modern Slavery as a category of
abuse. In.addition to this we provide an enhanced level of safeguarding training to all of our qualified clinical staff which
discusses in more depth the categories of abuse including Modern Slavery.

Supply Chain

Our Supply Chain is made up of a number of large multi-national companies, Small to Medium Enterprises (SME’s) and small
local suppliers who make up a total of 2,975 livesuppliers to the Trust at this current time. The location of supplier premises and
manufacture locations are spread globally but the vast majority are situated in the European Union, whereitis estimated tha t
several hundred thousand people work for the aforementioned suppliers although not all these people work on UHNM related
goods and services. ’

We have ensured that Anti-Slavery related provisionis contained in both our Standard Terms and Conditions of Purchase which
areissued with every Purchase Order and all tender documentation issued by the Trust.

Due to the nature of our business and our approach to governance and risk management, we assess that there is low risk of
stavery and human trafficking in our business and supply chains. However we will continue to periodically review the
effectiveness of our relevant policies, procedures and associated training to ensure that the risk remains low.

We do not have key performance indicators inrelationto slavery or human traffickingas any instance would be expected to be a
breach of law, our supplier standards and/or our local policies and therefore acted upon accordingly.

o2a COQ

Paula Clark, Chief Executive
25™ May 2018
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B6 Signature of Accountable Officer

This Annual Report is approved by:

e CQ0Q

Paula Clark
Chief Executive Officer
25™ May 2018
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A commentary on our financial position is
included earlier in this report in our headline
finances. The following pages are our Summary
Financial Statements.

The Statement of Comprehensive Income shows
how much money we earned and how we spent
it. The main source of our income is from local
commissioners, with which we have agreements
to provide services for their patients.

Our biggest expense is on the salaries and wages of our staff. On average during this year we employed the equivalent of 9,497
full-time staff (compared with 9,760 last year). The actual number of people working for the Trust is more because a number
work part-time (therefore, the full-time equivalentis less).

We also spend money buying services from other parts of the NHS, mainly ambulance transport for our patients.

We buy clinical and general supplies, maintain our premises, some of the costs of which are payable to our PFl partner and pay
for gas and electricity, rent and rates. We also allow for depreciation, the wearing out of buildings and equipment which need
to bereplaced.

Our Statement of Financial Position summarises our assets and liabilities. It tells us the value of the land, buildings and
equipment we own and of supplies we hold in stock for the day to day running of the hospital. It also shows money owed to us
and the money we owe to others, mainly for goods and services received but not yet paid for. Under International Financial
Reporting Standards it also shows buildings and equipment that are legally owned by our PFI partner and related borrowings
which will be settled through the unitary payments we make over the term of the PFI contracts.

The Better Payment Practice Code shows how quickly we pay our bills.
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Operatingincome from patient careactivities

Other operatingincome

Operating expenses

Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations

Financeincome

Financeexpenses

Public dividend capital dividends payable
Net finance costs

Other gains / (losses)

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Impairments

Revaluations

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period

Financial Performance for the year
Surplus/{deficit) for the year
IFRIC12 adjustments

Add backI&E impairments

Less capital donations

CQUIN adjustment

Reported NHS financial position

Non-current assets:
Property, plantand equipment
Intangibleassets

Trade and other receivables
Total non-¢current assets
Current assets:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Other current assets
Cashandcash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Borrowings

Total current liabilities

Non-current assets plus/less net current assets/liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provisions

Borrowings

Total non-current liabilities

602,589
136,690
(770,128)
(30,849)

50
(15,518)
(3,925)
(19,393)
7
(50,235)

(98,967)
33,635
(115,567)

(50,235)
9,728
12,446

288
0
(27,773)

485,018
20,143
3,032

508,193

13,298
37,817
247
13,566
64,928
573,121

(78,454)
(5,713)
(21,950)
(106,117)
467,004

(983)
(333,032)

610,684
85,946
(736,512)
(39,882)

64
(19,336)
(2,119)
(21,391)

(5)
(61,278)

0
45,549
(15,729)

(61,278)
0
(8,583)
144
(1,608)
(71,325)

532,326
18,625
0
550,951

12,682
65,940
0
12,646
91,268
642,219

(71,811)
(3,601)
(18,820)
(94,232)
547,987

(980)
(428,662)
(8)
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Total Assets Employed:

FINANCED BY:

Public Dividend Capital
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserve
Total Taxpayers' Equity:

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operatingsurplus/ (deficit)

Non-cash income and expense:

Depreciationand amortisation

Net impairments

Income recognised in respect of capital donations
(Increase)/decreaseininventories
(Increase)/decreaseinreceivables and other assets
Increase/(decrease)in payables and other liabilities
Increase/(decrease)in provisions

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchaseof intangibleassets

Purchase of property, plantand equipment

Sales of property, plantand equipment

Receipt of capital donationsto purchasecapital assets
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received

Movement on loans fromthe Department of Health and Social Care

Movement on other loans
Other capital receipts
Capital element of financeleaserental payments

Capital element of PFI,LIFT and other serviceconcession payments

Interest paid on financeleaseliabilities

Interest paid on PFI, LIFT and other service concession obligations

Other interest paid

PDC dividend (paid) / refunded

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

(334,015)
132,989

389,225
(332,878)
76,642
132,989

(30,849)

27,251
22,174
(452)
(930)
22,856
(14,846)
(3,610)
21,594

50
(4,608)
(38,504)
0
31
(43,031)

26,650
29,362
46
7
(367)
(9,392)
(180)
(14,752)
(586)
(5,828)
24,960

3,523
10,043

13,566

{429,650)
118,337

390,302
(393,986)
122,021
118,337

(39,882)

27,212
(8,583)
(594)
616
(25,325)
2,363
(2,115)
(46,308)

64
(2,447)
(26,554)
59
594
(28,284)

1,077
101,760
(293)
0
(461)
(9,273)
(126)
(14,917)
(2,967)
(1,128)
73,672

(920)
13,566

12,646
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Pubic Income and Revaluation
Dividend Expenditure Reserve

Capital (PDC) Reserve £000
£000 £000

Taxpayers equity at 1 April 2017 - brought forward 389,225 (332,878) 76,642 132,989
Surplus/(deficit) for the year (61,278) (61,278)
Impairments 0 0
Revaluations 45,549 45,549
Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets 170 (170) 0
Public dividend capital received cash 1,077 0 1,077
Taxpayers equity at 31 March 2018 390,302 {393,986) 122,021 118,337
Taxpayers equity at 1 April 2017 - brought forward 389,225 (332,878) 76,642 132,989

Measure of Compliance 2020737 2047/18 _
Total non NHS trade invoices paidintheyear 117,000 348,574 128,930 383,834
Total non NHS trade invoices paid withintarget 93,631 303,643 104,319 332,834
Percentage of non NHS trade invoices paid within target 80.0% 87.1% 80.9% 86.7%
Total NHS trade invoices inthe year 2,567 28,907 2,766 30,457
Total NHS trade invoices paid withintarget 1,450 21,563 1,619 22,417
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid withintarget 56.5% 74.6% 58.5% 73.6%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires that Trusts aim to pay all undisputed invoices by the due date or within
30 days of receipt of goods or avalid invoice, whichever is later. We have not signed up to the Prompt Payments
Code.

Year Turnover Surplus / (Deficit)
1997/98 152,393 (1,199)
1998/99 165,535 (1,246)
1999/00 182,744 1,279
2000/01 193,823 1,225
2001/02 212,576 18
2002/03 235,801 4
2003/04 257,641 3
2004/05 295,327 41
2005/06 299,619 (15,059)
2006/07 333,855 311
2007/08 393,915 3,990
2008/09 371,299 3,008
2009/10 408,938 5,312
2010/11 418,078 4,141
2011/12 426,319 1,050
2012/13 473,558 235
2013/14 475,330 (19,301)
2014/15 623,835 3,782
2015/16 702,917 (26,936)
2016/17 739,279 (27,773)
2017/18 696,630 (69,717)

Cumulative Breakeven Position: - (136,832)
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Total days lost 90,520 83,399
Total staff years 9,427 9,522
Average working days lost 9.60 9.40

Our land was valued as at 31 March 2018 at £19.2m. These values are reflected inthe Trust's Statement of Financial
Position.

To demonstrate that we are running our Trust properly we are required to publish a number of statements which
are signed by our Chief Executive on behalf of ourTrust Board. These statements cover ourfinancial affairs as wellas
anumber of other aspects of managing our Trust.

Our external auditor also checks our accounts and other aspects of our work and we are required to publish
statements from them confirming that they are satisfied with what we have done. These formal statements are
reproduced onthese pages and the directors confirm that they know of no information which would be relevant to
the auditors for the purposes of their report which has not been disclosed.

Our accounts are externally audited by Grant Thornton to meet the

statutory requirements of the Department of Health. Theyreceived
fees of £97k for audit services. GrantThOI‘ntOn

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS
Pension Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded defined benefit scheme
that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed
underthe direction of the secretary of State, in England and Wales. As a
consequence it is not possible for our Trust to identify our share of the
= underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore the scheme is
Pe n s l o n S accounted for as a defined contribution scheme and the cost of the
scheme is equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the
accounting period.
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A full set of audited accounts for University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust is available on request or can be
viewed and downloaded on our website www.uhnm.nhs.uk.

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each financial year.

The Secretary of State, with the approval of HM Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of the trust and of the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the

year. In preparing those accounts, the directors are required to:

« apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the approval of the
Treasury;

¢ make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;

e state whetherapplicableaccounting standards have been fotlowed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the accounts.

The directors are responsible for kee ping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements
outlined inthe above mentioned direction of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible for safeguarding the

assets of the Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of theirknowledge and belief they have complied with the above requirements in
preparing the accounts.

By order of the Board

as.5. I8 Date........ ["“”—Q"“C—C/-“—Q’Chlef Executive

Chief Officer —Finance & Performance
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Provider accounts - single entity accounts

Inputs

MARSID

Name of trust
Provider status

Date of year end

Start of current year
Comparative year end
Start of comparative year

Year for financial reporting
Year for comparative year

Year for year end
Year for comparative year

Opening Year

Next financial year

Date of approval of financial statements

INORTHMIDLANDS

University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust

Trust
31/03/2018
01/04/2017
31/03/2017
01/04/2016

2017/18

2016/17

2018

2017

2016

|2018/19 |

|25/05/2018 |




University Hospitals of North Midiands NHS Trust

Annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018



University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2017-18

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2018

Operating income from patient care activities
Other operating income
Operating expenses
Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations

Finance income

Finance expenses

PDC dividends payable
Net finance costs

Other gains / (losses)
Surplus / (deficit) for the year

Other comprehensive income*

Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:
Impairments
Revaluations

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period

Financial Performance for the year

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) (control total basis)

IFRIC 12 adjustment (including IFRIC 12 impairments)
Add back all I&E impairments / (reversals)
Remove capital donations / grants I&E impact

CQUIN Risk Reserve - 1617 CT non achievement adjustment

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit)

2017/18 2016/17

Note £000 £000
3 610,684 602,589
4 85,946 136,690
6,8 (736,512) (770,128)
(39,882) (30,849)

11 64 50
12 (19,336) (15,518)
(2,119) (3,925)

(21,391) (19,393)

13 (5) 7
(61,278) (50,235)

7 - (98,967)
16 45,549 33,635
(15,729) (115,567)

2017118 2016/17

£000 £000

(61,278) (50,235)

’ 9,728

(8,583) 12,446

144 288

(1,608) -

(71,325) (27,773)

*Other Comprehensive Income shows other non-cash net gains/(losses) that are not included as either operating
revenue or expenditure, and as such does not impact on the financial outturn of the Trust.

The notes on pages 8 to 55 form part of this account
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2018

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total assets employed

Financed by
Public dividend capital
Revaluation reserve
Income and expenditure reserve
Total taxpayers' equity

The notes on pages 8 to 55 form part of these accounts.

Note

14
15
18

17
18
19
20

21
23
25
22

23
25
22

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000

18,625 20,143
532,326 485,018
- 3,032
550,951 508,193
12,682 13,298
65,940 37,817
- 247
12,646 13,566
91,268 64,928
(65,823) (72,970)
(18,820) (21,950)
(3,601) (5,713)
(5,988) (5,267)
(94,232) (105,900)
547,987 467,221

(428,662) (333,032)

(980) (983)

(8) (217)
(429,650) (334,232)
118,337 132,989
390,302 389,225
122,021 76,642
(393,986) (332,878)
118,337 132,989

The financial statements on pages 3 to 55 were approved by the Board on 25 May 2018 and signed on its behalf by

Chief Executive: E&, C_,Q;;,\_Q

Date ag . A -
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

Public income and

dividend Revaluation expenditure
capital reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Taxpayers® equity at 1 April 2017 - brought forward 389,225 76,642 (332,878) 132,989
Surplus/(deficit) for the year - (61,278) (61,278)
Impairments = . .
Revaluations - 45,549 - 45,549
Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (170) 170 -
Pubtic dividend capital received cash* 1017 - - 1,077
Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2018 390,302 122,021 {393,986) 118,337

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2017

Public Income and

dividend Revaluation expenditure
capital reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2016 - brought forward 362,575 143,679 (284,348) 221,906
Surplus/(deficit) for the year - (50,235) (50,235)
Other transfers between reserves (1,705) 1,705 -
Impairments - (98,967) (98,967)
Revaluations 33,635 33,635
Public dividend capital received * cash 26,650 - - 26,650
Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2017 389,225 76,642 {332,878) 132,989

*The increase in Public Dividend Capital of £1.077m relates to capital funding for the Urgent Treatment Centre and Cyber
Security. In 2016/17 £26.65m relates to Integrating Hospital Services in Staffordshire (IHSS) funding received as a result of

of the integration of Mid Staffordshire Foundation Trust on 1 November 2014,

Reconciliation of movement on retained earnings to adjusted deficit
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year

Impairments excluded from financial performance

Adjustments in respect of donated gov't grant asset reserve
elimination

Transfer from revaluation reserve in respect of assets disposal.
Adjusted financial performance (deficit)

Adjustment for CQUIN reserve

Total

(61,108)

8,583
(144)

170
(71,325)
1,608

———

(61,108)
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Information on reserves

Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to trusts by the
Department of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the
Department of Health as the public dividend capital dividend.

Revaluation reserve

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the
extent that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating expenditure. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to
the extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of
economic benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the trust.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus / (deficit)
Non-cash income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation
Net impairments
Income recognised in respect of capital donations
(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assets
(Increase) / decrease in inventories
Increase / (decrease) in payables and other liabilties
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and investment property
Sales of property, plant, equipment and investment property
Receipt of cash donations to purchase capital assets
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received
Movement on loans from the Department of Health and Social Care
Movement on other loans
Other capital receipts
Capital element of finance lease rental payments
Capital element of PFI, LIFT and other service concession payments
Interest paid on finance lease liabilities
Interest paid on PFI, LIFT and other service concession obligations
Other interest paid
PDC dividend (paid) / refunded
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Note

6.1

201

201718 2016/17
£000 £000
(39,882) (30,849)
27,212 27,251
(8,583) 22,174
(594) (421)
(25,325) 22,856
616 (930)
2,363 (14,846)
(2,115) (3,610)
(46,308) 21,625
64 50
(2,447) (4,608)
(26,554) (38,504)
59 -
594 .
(28,284) (43,062)
1,077 26,650
101,760 29,362
(293) 46
- 7
(461) (367)
(9.273) (9,392)
(126) (180)
(14,917) (14,752)
(2,967) (586)
(1,128) (5,828)
73,672 24,960
(920) 3,523
13,566 10,043
12,646 13,566
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Notes to the Accounts
Note 1 Accounting policies and other information
Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

The Department of Health and Social Care has directed that the financial statements of the trust shall meet the
accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be
agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
GAM 2017/18 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the GAM
follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as
determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a
choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances
of the trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted are
described below. These have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to
accounts.

Note 1.1.1 Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

Note 1.1.2 Going concern

International Accounting Standard 1 requires the Board to assess, as part of the accounts preparation process, the
Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. Paragraphs 4.11 and 4.16 of the Department of Health and Social Care
Group Accounting Manual identify that the continuation of the service is sufficient evidence of going concern. The
financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless there are plans for, or no realistic alternative
other than, the dissolution of the Trust without the transfer of its services to another entity within the public sector. In
preparing the financial statements the Board of Directors has considered the Trust's overall financial position against
the requirements of IAS1.

The Trust reported a deficit of £27.773m in 2016/17. The Trust's financial performance in 2017/18 was £69.717 million
deficit which is the breakeven duty financial performance net of the £1.608 million CQUIN risk reserve in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. As at 31 March 2018, the Trust has received cash support for its revenue position of
£143.6m. Of this £101.8m was received in 2017/18 for its revenue position and £41.8m over the preceding two years
(£12.5m in 2015/16 and £29.3m in 2016/17). The Trust's financial plan for 2018/19 forecasts the delivery of a further
deficit of £44.8m, necessitating further revenue cash borrowing using the Department of Health's Uncommitted Single
Currency Interim Revenue Support Facility Agreement. The planned cash support in 2018/19 has been approved by the
Trust Board as part of the overall financial plan for the year. In order for the Trust to access this facility, the Department
of Health must approve the Trust's daily cash flow forecast for 13 weeks from the date of each drawdown.

The Directors are seeking additional support from NHS Improvement in 2018/19 of £42.4m. This consists of new
borrowing of £67.2m and the repayment of £24.8m 2017/18 deficit report where the cash has been received in May
2018 as required by NHSI. The Financial Plan submitted to NHS Improvement on 30 April 2018 includes the
requirement for £42.4m cash support. NHS Improvement has not, at this point, confirmed this support for the full
amount, however in April 2018 the Trust has received cash support from NHS Improvement in line with the Financial
Plan.

The Trust anticipates that it may take some time before it can achieve financial balance on a sustainable basis. The
Board of Directors has carefully considered the principle of "going concern” and the Directors have concluded that there
are material uncertainties related to the financial sustainability (profitability and liquidity) of the Trust which may cast
significant doubt about the ability of the Trust to continue as a going concern.

Nevertheless, the Directors have concluded that assessing the Trust as a going concern remains appropriate. The
Trust has agreed contracts with local commissioners for 2018/19 and services are being commissioned in the same
manner in the future as in prior years and there are no discontinued operations. Similarly no decision has been made
to transfer services or significantly amend the structure of the organisation at this time. The Board of Directors also
has a reasonable expectation that the Trust will have access to adequale resources in the form of support from the
Department of Health (NHS Act 2006 s42a) to continue to deliver the full range of mandatory services for the
foreseeable future.
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Subject to the receipt of the revenue funding within the 2018/19 financial plan, the Directors consider that this provides
sufficient evidence that the Trust will continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future. On this basis, the Trust
has adopted the going concern basis for preparing the accounts and has not included the adjustments that would result
if it were unable to continue as a going concern. The assessment accords with the statutory guidance contained within
the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual.

Note 1.2 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in
the process of applying the trust accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Income recognition

It is the Trust's accounting policy to recognise income when performance occurs. In some instances the income that
the Trust receives is not readily attributable to performance or the achievement of certain targets cannot readily be
ascertained. The key judgements in relation to income recognition are detailed below at 1.2.1.

Estate Valuation

The Trust's management have elected to have a desk top valuation of the Trust's land and buildings as at 31 March
2018. This option was elected as providing the best assurance that the values are not materially misstated at the
balance sheet date. The value of the Trust's Land, buildings and dwellings as at 31 March 2018 is £470,570,320. If the
Trust's management had not revalued the estate, at 31 March 2018 the value of Land, Buildings and Dwellings would
have been £451,648,000.

The Trust obtains valuations for its land, buildings and dwellings from a qualified independent valuer. These valuations
are performed at a point in time and take into account conditions and circumstances relevant to that date. In future
years, conditions may change resulting in uplifts or impairments being required to the value of land, buildings and
dwellings. The valuation has been completed based on the depreciated replacement cost and the remaining useful
economic life of the assets.

PFI Assets

The Trust's PFI scheme is deemed under International Financial Reporting Standards to be classed as on Statement of
Financial Position on the basis that the asset is under the control of the Trust and all risks and rewards sit with the
Trust. This is deemed to be a critical judgement that impacts on the financial statements.

The Trust's PFl assets have been valued using the modern equivalent asset method at depreciated replacement cost

excluding VAT. By excluding VAT the Trust is accurately reflecting the depreciated replacement cost as a replacement
asset would also be funded by PFI and, by the nature of the contract, have VAT recovered. This valuation is the same
methodology and assumptions as in the prior year.

Operating leases/finance leases

The Trust has two buildings which are leased to a third party. The Trust has deemed that this is an operating lease
where the risks and rewards of the asset remain with the Trust and as such are recognised on the Trust's Statement of
Financial Position as assets. This is deemed to be a critical judgement as if the transaction was deemed to be a
finance lease the assets would not be reflected in the Statement of Financial Position and the property, plant and
equipment balance would be £15,794,514 lower if these assets were not included.

Note 1.2.1 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The Trust do not consider that there are any major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The
following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have been assessed.

Income recognition

In 2008-09 the requirement to account for patient care spells that were in progress but not complete as at 31 March
was introduced. The value put on this activity is estimated using an average tariff, rather than the specific tariff relevant
for each patient. The total value of the accrual for patient care is £5,656,173 and therefore a change of 1% between
the average tariff applied and the actual tariff due would affect income assumptions by £56,562.
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In 2013-14 the Payment by Results (PbR) rules regarding maternity pathways changed. The key element of this
change is that the Commissioners make one payment per pregnancy covering the whole of the maternity pathway at
the point at which the woman first presents for treatment. As providers of the treatment, the Trust defers the element of
income which has been received in advance of the care being provided. The Trust estimates the income to be deferred
based on the number of weeks of maternity care remaining for the patients who have attended the Trust. The Trust
estimates the average antenatal phase for each patient and calculates the proportion of the antenatal phase which has
not been completed by 31 March 2018 based on the average antenatal phase. The Trust then defers this element of
income. The value of income deferred relating to maternity pathway is £3,117,655 and therefore a change of 1% to the
value deferred would affect the income assumptions by £31,177.

Valuation of liabilities

As at 31 March 2018 the Trust recognised £38,745,000 of accruals and deferred income within trade and payables
liability. The Trust's management has made the best estimate of the value of the liability based on information available
at the reporting date. The value of these accruals may differ from the values estimated and since the value is high a
difference of only 1% between the estimate and actual value would result in a change to the Trust's expenditure of
£38,745. However, since none of the accruals are individually material and the Trust has provided at the most likely
value (rather than with a bias towards a more or less favourable outturn) it is unlikely that the difference between actual
and estimated values would be significant.

The Trust has obtained professional advice where applicable for the value that should be recognised in respect of
provisions and contingent liabilities. The value of these liabilities is uncertain and values are likely to differ from those
estimated. A difference of 1% between the estimated provision and actual value would result in a change to the Trusts
position of £45,810. However, the Trust has provided at what it estimates the likely value would be based on
information available.

Valuation of assets

As at 31 March 2018 the Trust recognised trade and receivables assets of £65,940,000. The Trust reviews and
provides where necessary for income invoices more than 180 days past the due date, for RTA accruals at the
prescribed rate of 22.84% and individually for any other debts which Trust management has reason to believe the Trust
may not receive. The Trust's management considers that this is a reasonable estimate of the value of asset.

PFI

The Trust uses appropriate estimations to allocate the annual unitary payment into the relevant component parts. The
Trust obtained professional advice at the beginning of the PFI contract to review and allocate the payments
appropriately as set out in note 28.

Note 1.3 Charitable Funds

The divergence from the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) that NHS Charitable Funds are not
consolidated with NHS Trust's own financial statements has been removed for 2017-18. Under the provisions of IFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements, those Charitable Funds that fall under common control with NHS bodies should
be consolidated within the entity's financial statements. The Trust has a Charitable Fund, the "UHNM Charity' that falls
under the definition of common control. Common control is defined within IFRS 10 as "the power to govern the
financial and operational policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities". Control is presumed to exist
where a parent owns directly or indirectly more than half of the voting power of an entity, including where a body acts as
a corporate trustee. The Trustees of the Charitable Fund are all members of the Trust Board. The purpose of an NHS
Charity is to assist NHS patients, and HM Treasury view this as the "benefit” link as per the IFRS 10 guidance. The
Trust has reviewed the financial statements of the 'UHNM Charity' and it is deemed that the income, expenditure,
assets and liabilities of the Charitable Fund are not material. 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements states that
specific disclosure requirements set out in individual standards or interpretations need not be satisfied if the information
is not material. The consolidation of the Charitable Fund would not have a material impact on the financial statements
of the Trust and has therefore not been consolidated into the Trust's financial statements.
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Note 1.4 Income

Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs and is
measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of income for the trust is contracts with
commissioners in respect of health care services. At the year end, the trust accrues income relating to activity delivered
in that year, where a patient care spell is incomplete.

Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in a subsequent financial year, that income is
deferred.

Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met, and
is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.

The NHS trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating
injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an insurer. The NHS
trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation
Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a compensation claim. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the
treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.

Revenue grants and other contributions to expenditure

Government grants are grants from government bodies other than income from commissioners or trusts for the
provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income to match that expenditure.

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the the Government's apprenticeship service is
recognised as income at the point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly to an
accredited training provider, the corresponding notional expense is also recognised at the point of recognition for the
benefit.

Note 1.5 Expenditure on employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are
recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees.

Pension costs

NHS Pension Scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded,
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of
Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way that would enable employers to identify
their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. There, the schemes are accounted for as though they are
defined contribution schemes.

Employer's pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is
due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time
the trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

v

Note 1.6 Expenditure on other goods and services

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is
measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where
it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.

Page 11



University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2017-18

Note 1.7 Property, plant and equipment

Note 1.7.1 Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:

+ itis held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes

* itis probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust

» it is expected to be used for more than one financial year

« the cost of the item can be measured reliably

= the item has cost of at least £5,000, or

» collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have cost of more than £250, where the
assets are functionally interdependent, had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have similar
disposal dates and are under single managerial control.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives,
eg, plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful
economic lives.

Note 1.7.2 Measurement

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or
constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Assets that are held for their service potential and are in use are measured
subsequently at their current value in existing use. Assets that were most recently held for their service potential but
are surplus are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions preventing access to the market at the reporting
date.

Land and buildings are stated in the Statement of Financial Position (SOFP) at their revalued amounts, being the fair
value at the date of revaluation less any impairment. Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with
sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would be determined at
the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing use are determined as follows:

e Land and non-specialised buildings — market value for existing use.

e Specialised buildings — depreciated replacement cost (DRC).

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees and, where capitalised in accordance with 1AS 23, borrowing costs. Assets are
revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

All land and buildings are restated to current value using independent professional valuations in accordance with IAS16
at least every five years, with interim revaluations carried out annually also by independent professional valuers. The
full asset valuation includes a full site inspection by the professional valuer whilst interim valuations only include a site
inspection where deemed necessary due to significant changes in the year. The last full asset valuations were
undertaken at the prospective valuation date at 1st April 2016 which included a site visit in early 2016. An interim
valuation was carried out at 31 March 2018 which included a review of capital expenditure, market conditions and
asset lives.

Valuations are carried out by professionally qualified valuers in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual.

The property valuations are carried out primarily on the basis of (DRC) for specialised operational property (e.g. NHS
patient treatment facilities) and Existing Use Value (EUV) for non-specialised operational property. The value of land for
existing use purposes is assessed at EVU. For non-operational land including surplus land, the valuations are carried
out at Market Value.

The Department of Health has adopted the Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA) approach for its DRC valuations rather than
the previous identical replacement method. The MEA approach used to value the property will normally be based on
the cost of a modern equivalent asset that has the same service potential as the existing asset and then adjusted to
take account of obsolescence. In the past, functional obsolescence has not been reflected in asset valuations for the
NHS.
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Functional obsolescence examines a building’s design or specification and whether it may no longer fulfil the function
for which it was originally designed or whether it may be much more basic than the MEA. The asset will still be capable
of use but at a lower level of efficiency than the MEA, or may be capable of madification to bring it up to a current
specification. Other common causes of functional obsolescence include advances in technology or legislative change.
The obsolescence adjustment will reflect either the cost of upgrading, or if this is not possible, the financial
consequences of the reduced efficiency compared with the modern equivalent.

The Trust's PF| assets have been valued using the modern equivalent asset method at depreciated replacement cost

excluding VAT. By excluding VAT the Trust is accurately reflecting the depreciated replacement cost as a replacement
asset would also be funded by PF| and, by the nature of the contract, have VAT recovered. This valuation is the same
methodology as in the prior year.

The MEA approach incorporates the Building Cost Information Service Index to determine an increase or decrease in
building costs which impact on the asset valuation.

Additional alternative Open Market Value figures have only been supplied for operational assets scheduled for
imminent closure and subsequent disposal.

The carrying values of PPE are reviewed for impairment in periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable.

The Trust's land and building valuation was carried out by the Trust's current valuer DVS, on a MEA “"Optimised
Alternative Site” method valuation, and applied on 1st April 2016, with an interim valuation at 31 March 2018.

The valuation has been undertaken having regard to IFRS as applied to the UK public sector and in accordance with
HM Treasury guidance. The Trust has valued its land and buildings at fair value - non-specialised assets at existing use
value and specialised operation assets at depreciated replacement cost.

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are
valued at depreciated historic cost where these assets have short useful economic lives or low values or both, as this is
not considered to be materially different from current value in existing use.

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the
same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the
decrease previously charged there. A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or
service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance
on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of
economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported
as other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving
from the cost incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be
determined reliably. Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets
the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that
does not generate additional future economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation

ltems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful economic lives in a manner
consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an
infinite life and is not depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as 'held for sale’ ceases to be depreciated upon the

reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PF!
contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively.
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Revaluation gains and losses

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a
revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating expenditure as a reversal.

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset
concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an
item of ‘other comprehensive income’.

Impairments

In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service
potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve
to the income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating
expenses; and (i} the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.

An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and to
the extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating
expenditure to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never
been recognised. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original
impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is
transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impaiments’ are treated as revaluation gains.

Note 1.7.3 Derecognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as 'held for sale’ once all of the following criteria are met:

- the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual and customary
for such sales;
« the sale must be highly probable ie:

- management are committed to a plan to sell the asset

- an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale

- the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price

- the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as ‘held for sale' and

- the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped or significant changes
made to it.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value
less costs to sell'. Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract
conditions have been met.

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as 'held for sale’
and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset's economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised
when scrapping or demolition occurs.

Note 1.7.4 Donated and grant funded assets

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The
donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future
economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in @ manner specified by the donor, in which case, the
donation/grant is deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition
has not yet been met.

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property,
plant and equipment.
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Note 1.7.5 Private Finance Initiative (PFl) transactions

PF1 transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury's FReM,
are accounted for as 'on-Statement of Financial Position’ by the trust. In accordance with IAS 17, the underlying assets
are recognised as property, plant and equipment, together with an equivalent finance lease liability. Subsequently, the
assets are accounted for as property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assets as appropriate.

The annual contract payments are apportioned between the repayment of the liability, a finance cost and the charges
for services.

The service charge is recognised in operating expenses and the finance cost is charged to finance costs in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

PFI Asset

The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are measured
initially at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, in accordance with the principles
of IAS 17. Subsequently, the assets are measured at current value in existing use.

PFI liability

A PFl liability is recognised at the same time as the PF| assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the same
amount as the initial value of the PF| assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance
with 1AS 17.

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease liability for
the period, and is charged to ‘Finance Costs' within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the annual
finance cost and to repay the lease liability over the contract term.

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance lease. In
accordance with IAS 17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead treated as
contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect of the liability and
the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive income.

Lifecycle replacement

Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where
they meet the NHS trust's criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the
operator and are measured initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year of the
contract from the operator's planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided
earlier or later than expected, a short-term accrual or prepayment is recognised respectively.

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is
recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in
the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred
income is released to operating income over the shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful economic life of
the replacement component.

Assets contributed by the NHS trust to the operator for use in the scheme

Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and equipment in the
NHS trust’s Statement of Financial Position.

Other assets contributed by the NHS trust to the operator

Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the NHS trust to the operator before the asset is brought
into use, which are intended to defray the operator’s capital costs, are recognised initially as prepayments during the
construction phase of the contract. Subsequently, when the asset is made available to the NHS trust, the prepayment is
treated as an initial payment towards the finance lease liability and is set against the carrying value of the liability.
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Note 1.7.6 Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment

Useful economic lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful
economic lives are shown in the table below:

Min life Max life

Years Years

Buildings, excluding dwellings 15 80
Dwellings 20 80
Plant & machinery 5 15
Transport equipment 4 7
Information technology 3 10
Furniture & fittings 5 15

Finance-leased assets (including land) are depreciated over the shorter of the useful economic life or the lease term,
uniess the trust expects to acquire the asset at the end of the lease term in which case the assets are depreciated in
the same manner as owned assets above.

Note 1.8 Intangible assets

Note 1.8.1 Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from
the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust and where the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably, and where the cost is at least £5,000.

Internally generated intangible assets
Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised
as intangible assets.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised.
Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated:

- the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for sale or use

» the trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it

» the trust has the ability to sell or use the asset

- how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits, eg, the presence of a
market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the asset;

* adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the trust to complete the development and sell or
use the asset and

- the trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.

Software

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, eg an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant
item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware, eg application
software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.

Note 1.8.2 Measurement
Intangible assels are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and
prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at current value in existing use. Where no active market exists,
intangible assets are valued at the lower of depreciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is
income generating. Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the same manner as for property,
plant and equipment. An intangible asset which is surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value
under IFRS 13, if it does not meet the requirements of IAS 40 of IFRS 5.

Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or “fair value less costs to sell”.

Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner consistent with the consumption
of economic or service delivery benefits.

Note 1.8.3 Useful economic lives of intangible assets
Useful economic lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful
economic lives for software licences is between 2 and 15 years
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Note 1.9 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured using the first in,
first out (FIFO) method. This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to the fair value due to the high turnover of
stocks.

Note 1.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and that form an integral part of the NHS Trust's cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are
recorded at current values.

Note 1.11 Financial instruments and financial liabilities

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as
goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the trust's normal purchase, sale or usage requirements,
are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs, ie, when receipt or delivery of the goods or services
is made.

Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases are recognised
and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described below.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the trust becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

De-recognition
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the trust has
transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement
Financial assets are categorised as “fair value through income and expenditure”, loans and receivables or “available-for-
sale financial assets”.

Financial liabilities are classified as “fair value through income and expenditure” or as “other financial liabilities”.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at “fair value through income and expenditure”

Financial assets and financial liabilities at “fair value through income and expenditure” are financial assets or financial
liabilities held for trading. A financial asset or financial liability is classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges.

The Trust does not hold Financial assets and finanical liabilities at "fair value through income and expenditure"
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Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in
an active market.

The trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash and cash equivalents, NHS receivables, accrued income and “other
receivables”.

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured subsequently at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets which are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in long-term assets unless the trust intends to dispose of them
within 12 months of the Statement of Financial Position date.

The Trust does not hold any Available-for-sale financial assets.

Other financial liabilities

All other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts
exactly estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.

They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the Statement of Financial
Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.

Interest on financiat liabilities carried at amartised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and charged to
finance costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is not
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Impairment of financial assets

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at “fair
value through income and expenditure” are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses are
recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset's original
effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced directly.
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Note 1.12 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Note 1.12.1 The trust as lessee

Finance leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the trust, the asset is recorded as
property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the
lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest
rate impilicit in the lease.

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for an item
of property plant and equipment.

The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate of
finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The lease liability, is de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives
are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the
classification for each is assessed separately.

Note 1.12.2 The trust as lessor

Finance leases

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the trust net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
trusts’ net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Note 1.13 Provisions

The trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for
which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources required
to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows
are discounted using the discount rates published and mandated by HM Treasury.

Clinical negligence costs

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution,
which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all
clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried
by NHS resolution on behalf of the trust is disclosed at note 25.2 but is not recognised in the Trust's accounts.

Non-clinical risk pooling

The trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling
schemes under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance with the
costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any “excesses" payable in respect of particular claims
are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.
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Note 1.14 Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future
events not wholly within the entity's control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in note 26 where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 26, unless the probability of a transfer of economic
benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are defined as:

* possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or

* present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arise
or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Note 1.15 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. HVl Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial
instrument within the meaning of IAS 32.

At any time, the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the trust. PDC is
recorded at the value received.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is
calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the trust during the
financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for

(i) donated assets (including lottery funded assets),

(i) average daily cash balances held with the Government Banking Services (GBS) and National Loans Fund (NLF)
deposits, excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that relate to a short-term working capital facility, and

(iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or payable.

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the
dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the "pre-audit” version of the
annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the
audit of the annual accounts.

Note 1.16 Value added tax

Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on
purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are
stated net of VAT.

Note 1.17 Subsidiaries

Material entities over which the NHS trust has the power to exercise control are classified as subsidiaries and are
consolidated. The NHS trust has control when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns through its power over
another entity. The income and expenses; gains and losses; assets, liabilities and reserves; and cash flows of the
subsidiary are consolidated in full into the appropriate financial statement lines. Appropriate adjustments are made on
consolidation where the subsidiary’s accounting policies are not aligned with the NHS trust or where the subsidiary's
accounting date is not co-terminus.

Subsidiaries that are classified as 'held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or 'fair value less
costs to sell’.

From 2013-14, the Trust is required under IFRS10 to consolidate the results of 'UHNM Charity' Charitable Funds over
which it considers it has the power to exercise control in accordance with IFRS10 requirements. The Trust however
deems that the income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the Charitable Fund are not material to the Trust's financial
statements and in line with IAS1, which states that specific disclosure requirements set out in individual standards or
interpretations need not be satisfied if the information is not material, the Trust has not consolidated the Charitable Fund.
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Note 1.18 Third party assets

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the
trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance
with the requirements of HM Treasury's FReM.

Note 1.19 Losses and special payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health
service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to
special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which
govern the way that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional
headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance
cover had the trust not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue
expenditure).

However the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which
reports on an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.

Note 1.20 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations
No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been early adopted in 2017/18.

Note 1.21 Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted

The HM Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2017-18. These
standards are still subject to HM Treasury FReM interpretation, with IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 being for implementation in
2018-19, and the government implementation date for IFRS 16 still subject to HM Treasury consideration.

o IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but
not yet adopted by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted. It is not considered that this change will have a
material impact on the accounts nor materially amend accounting policies

e [FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, but not yet adopted by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted. It is not considered that this
change will have a material impact on the accounts nor materially amend accounting policies

o [FRS 16 Leases — Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but not yet
adopted by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted. The Trust is working through the implications of this
change and awaiting guidance on the interpretation within the DoHSC Group Accounting Manual.
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Note 3 Operating income from patient care activities

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 201718 2016/17
£000 £000
Acute services
Elective income 102,858 106,632
Non elective income 188,598 173,401
First outpatient income 34,991 30,239
Follow up outpatient income 29,185 35,227
A & E income 21,283 19,024
High cost drugs income from commissioners (excluding pass-through costs) 50,870 50,830
Other NHS clinical income 181,122 185,354
All services
Private patient income 1,349 1,618
Other clinical income 428 264
Total income from activities 610,684 602,589
Note 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)
Income from patient care activities received from: 201718 2016/17
£000 £000
NHS England 211,449 193,180
Clinical commissioning groups 386,694 389,578
Department of Health and Social Care 685 -
Other NHS providers 26 434
NHS other 275 7,764
Non-NHS: private patients 1,349 1,618
Non-NHS: overseas patients (chargeable to patient) 428 264
NHS injury scheme 3,077 3,377
Non NHS: other 6,701 6,374
Total income from activities 610,684 602,589
Of which:
Related to continuing operations 610,684 602,589

Other non NHS revenue mainly relates to income received from NHS bodies within Wales which are classified as non
NHS as such bodies are outside NHS England.
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Note 3.3 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

Income recognised this year

Cash payments received in-year

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables
Amounts written off in-year

Note 4 Other operating income

Research and development
Education and training
Receipt of capital grants and donations
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Support from the Department of Health and Social Care for mergers*
Sustainability and transformation fund income
Rental revenue from operating leases
Income in respect of staff costs where accounted on gross basis
Other income **
Total other operating income
Of which:
Related to continuing operations

* Support from the Department of Health and Social Care for mergers relates to additional income received as

201718 201617
£000 £000
428 264
298 143
180 221

28 8
201718 2016117
£000 £000
4,657 6,224
27,730 26,400
594 452
205 238
11,765 23,657
9,900 63,275

- 8,883

896 1,301
479 677
29,720 5,583
85,946 136,690
85,946 136,690

transistional support for the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust integration. The funding received is £9.9m from the

DoHSC.

Funding received of £14.9m from NHS England relating to deficit funding and £2.10m in relation to Winter Funding is

included in other income detailed below.

**A breakdown of Other income is show in the table below:

Car Parking income

Catering

Pharmacy sales

Staff accommodation rental

2017/18 deficit report NHS England

2017/18 NHS England Winter Funding

Contribution to the costs of the modular theatre and wards
EU Emissions

Other income not identified above

2017118 2016/17
£000 £000
3,413 2,702
75 1
35 7
830 898
14,870 -
2,110 -
2,800 -
302 -
5,285 1,975
29,720 5,583
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Note 5 Income generation activities

The Trust undertakes income generation activities with an aim of achieving profit, which is then used in patient care. The
following provides details of income generation activities whose full cost exceeded £1m or was otherwise material.

Summary Table - aggregate of all schemes 201718 2016/17
£000 £000
Income 3,573 3,567
Full cost (2,465) (2,670)
Surplus / (deficit) 1,108 897
Note 6.1 Operating expenses
2017/18 201617
£000 £000
Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies* 7,787 13,257
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies 3,359 6,849
Purchase of social care - 1,611
Staff and executive directors costs 457,086 453,999
Remuneration of non-executive directors 88 89
Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs) 72,011 70,112
Supplies and services - general 8,037 7,690
Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs) 73,373 71,693
Inventories written down 541 47
Consultancy costs 5,431 5,768
Establishment 4,642 4,732
Premises 19,995 25,406
Transport (including patient travel) 3,514 3,616
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 23,247 23,474
Amortisation on intangible assets 3,965 3,777
Net impairments (8,583) 22,174
Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables 390 (1,619)
Audit fees payable to the external auditor
audit services- statutory audit 90 133
other auditor remuneration (external auditor only) 7 12
Internal audit costs 154 198
Clinical negligence 20,891 16,085
Legal fees 57 26
Insurance 79 54
Research and development (staff costs) 3,964 4,462
Education and training 1,537 1,865
Rentals under operating leases 4,236 4,376
Charges to operating expenditure for on-SoFP IFRIC 12 schemes (PFl) on IFRS
basis 31,237 31,813
Hospitality 72 85
Other (695) (1,656)
Total 736,512 770,128
Of which:
Related to continuing operations 736,512 770,128

*Service from NHS bodies does not include expenditure which falls into a category below
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Note 6.2 Other auditor remuneration

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:
1. Audit of quality accounts
2. Other assurance services

Total

Note 6.3 Limitation on auditor's liability
The limitation on auditor's liability for external audit work is £2m (2016/17: £0m).

Note 7 Impairment of assets

Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting from:
Unforeseen obsolescence
Changes in market price

Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit
Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve

Total net impairments

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000

7 12

7 12
2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000
48 964
(8,631) 21,210
(8,583) 22,174
: 98,967
(8,583) 121,141

The reversal of impairments relates to the impact of the interim valuation of the Trusts land and building assets at 31

March 2018 and is a result of an increase in build costs and the Staffordshire location factor during 2017/18.
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Note 8 Employee benefits

Salaries and wages

Social security costs

Apprenticeship levy

Employer's contributions to NHS pensions

Pension cost - other

Termination benefits

Temporary staff (including agency)
Total gross staff costs

Recoveries in respect of seconded staff
Total staff costs
Of which

Costs capitalised as part of assets
Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs

Note 8.1 Retirements due to ill-health

2017/18 2016/17
Total Total
£000 £000
364,747 355,365
34,571 33,445
1,773 -
42,329 41,382
25 -
618 425
18,487 29,885
462,550 460,502
462,550 460,502
1,500 2,041
461,050 458,461

During 2017/18 there were 6 early retirements from the trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (6 in the year ended 31
March 2017). The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is £305k (£259k in 2016/17).

The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.
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Note 9 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both
are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable
NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal
to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that
would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between
formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary's
Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting
period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as
providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March
2018, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2017, updated to 31 March 2018 with summary global member and
accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in 1AS 19, relevant FReM
interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are
published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of fiability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking
into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and
employers.

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31
March 2012. The Scheme Regulations allow for the level of contribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for
Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and employee and
employer representatives as deemed appropriate.

The next actuarial valuation is to be carried out as at 31 March 2016 and is currently being prepared. The direction
assumptions are published by HM Treasury which are used to complete the valuation calculations, from which the final
valuation report can be signed off by the scheme actuary. This will set the employer contribution rate payable from April
2019 and will consider the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap. There are provisions in the Public
Service Pension Act 2013 to adjust member benefits or contribution rates if the cost of the Scheme changes by more
than 2% of pay. Subject to this ‘employer cost cap’ assessment, any required revisions to member benefits or
contribution rates will be determined by the Secretary of State for Health after consultation with the relevant stakeholders.

Other pension schemes

In line with the Governments auto enrolment pension roll out, from 1st April 2013 the Trust offered the NEST pension
scheme to employees who may not be eligible to join the NHS Pension Scheme. The NEST scheme is a defined
contribution scheme. The Trust (employers) contributions to this scheme during 2017/18 were £25k (£22k in 2016/17)
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Note 10 Operating leases

Note 10.1 University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust as a lessor

This note discloses income generated in operating lease agreements where University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS

Trust is the lessor.

The Trust receives rental income from commerical retail outlets with the Hospital reception areas and from rental of

buildings owned by the Trust.

Operating lease revenue
Minimum lease receipts
Total

Future minimum lease receipts due:
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

Total

Note 10.2 University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust as a lessee

2017/18 201617
£000 £000
896 1,301
896 1,301
31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000
445 440
977 973
426 426
1,848 1,839

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating iease arrangements where University Hospitals of

North Midlands NHS Trust is the lessee.

The Trust leases various medical and office equipment assets under operating leases. The terms of the leases are

standard equipment leases for between 5-7 years. The Trust does not sub-let these assets.

Operating lease expense
Minimum lease payments
Total

Future minimum lease payments due:
- not later than one year,;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

Total

2017118 2016/17
£000 £000
4,236 4,376
4,236 4,376
31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000
4,094 4,194
6,352 9,915
10,446 14,109
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Note 11 Finance income
Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period.

Interest on bank accounts

Total

Note 12.1 Finance expenditure

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money.

Interest expense:
Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care
Finance leases
Interest on obligations under PFI contracts
Main finance costs on PFl and LIFT schemes obligations
Contingent finance costs on PFi and LIFT scheme obligations

Total interest expense

Total finance costs

2017118 2016/17
£000 £000

64 50

64 50
2017118 2016117
£000 £000
4,293 586
126 180
8,068 8,834
6,849 5,918
19,336 15,518
19,336 15,518

The interest expense has increased in 2017/18 due to the Trust requiring revenue cash borrowing using the Department
of Health's Uncommitted Single Currency Interim Revenue Support Facility Agreement of £101.76m. The interest rate paid

by the Trust in the year is between 1.5% and 6%.

Note 12.2 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public
Contract Regulations 2015

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation

Note 13 Other gains / (losses)

Gains on disposal of assets
Losses on disposal of assets

Total gains / (losses) on disposal of assets

Total other gains / (losses)

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000

1 2
2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000

- 7

(5) -

(5) 7

(5) L4
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Note 14.1 Intangible assets - 2017/18

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2017 - brought forward

Additions
Gross cost at 31 March 2018

Amortisation at 1 April 2017 - brought forward
Provided during the year
Amortisation at 31 March 2018

Net book value at 31 March 2018
Net book value at 1 April 2017

Information and technology assets are the only category of intangible asset held by the Trust. These
assets have not been revalued as amortised historic cost is deemed to be a reasonable proxy for fair

value.

The useful economic life of the asset is determined by the duration the asset will be used by the Trust.

Note 14.2 Intangible assets - 2016/17

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2016 - as previously
stated

Additions
Impairments
Reclassifications
Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2017

Amortisation at 1 April 2016 - as previously stated
Provided during the year
Impairments

Amortisation at 31 March 2017

Net book value at 31 March 2017
Net book value at 1 April 2016

Information &

technology Total
£000 £000
34,181 34,181
2,447 2,447
36,628 36,628
14,038 14,038
3,965 3,965
18,003 18,003
18,625 18,625
20,143 20,143

Information &

technology Total
£000 £000
26,610 26,610
4,614 4,614
(3,337) (3,337)
6,294 6,294
34,181 34,181
11,855 11,855
3,777 3,777
(1,594) (1,594)
14,038 14,038
20,143 20,143
14,755 14,755
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Note 16 Revaluations of property, plant and equipment

Valuations are carried out by professionally qualified valuers in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. The valuation information in 2017/18 was carried out by a qualified
independent from the District Valuation Service.

As set out in the accounting policies the Department of Health has adopted the Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA)
approach for its DRC valuations rather than the previous identical replacement method. The MEA approach used to value
the property will normally be based on the cost of a modern equivalent asset that has the same service potential as the
existing asset and then adjusted to take account of obsolescence. In the past, functional obsolescence has not been
reflected in asset valuations for the NHS.

Functional obsolescence examines a building’s design or specification and whether it may no longer fulfil the function for
which it was originally designed or whether it may be much more basic than the MEA. The asset will still be capable of
use but at a lower level of efficiency than the MEA, or may be capable of modification to bring it up to a current
specification. Other common causes of functional obsolescence include advances in technology or legislative change.
The obsolescence adjustment will reflect either the cost of upgrading, or if this is not possible, the financial consequences
of the reduced efficiency compared with the modern equivalent.

The MEA approach incorporates the Building Cost Information Service Index to determine an increase or decrease in
building costs which impact on the asset valuation. The Trust's land and building valuation was carried out by the Trust’s
current valuer DVS, on a MEA "Optimised Alternative Site” method valuation.

The valuation has been undertaken having regard to IFRS as applied to the UK public sector and in accordance with HM
Treasury guidance.

All land and buildings are restated to current value using independent professional valuations in accordance with IAS16
at least every five years, with interim revaluations carried out annually also by independent professional valuers. The full
asset valuation includes a full site inspection by the professional valuer whilst interim valuations only include a site
inspection where deemed necessary due to significant changes in the year. The last full asset valuations were
undertaken at the prospective valuation date at 1st April 2016 which included a site visit in early 2016. An interim
valuation was carried out at 31 March 2018 which included a review of capital expenditure, market conditions and asset
lives.

The value of land, buildings and dwelling assets provided by the valuer at 31 March 2018 was £470,517,320 and is
reflected in note 15.1. This reflects an increase of £50.8m from the previous desk top valuation at 31 March 2017 and
reflects and increase in buildings costs during the year and increases in the location factor applied relating to the
Staffordshire area.

The useful economic life of an asset is determined individually for each asset, but generally falls within the following
range:

Min Life Max Life
Years Years
Buildings 15 80
Dwellings 20 80
Plant & Machinery 5 15
Transport Equipment 4 7
Information Technology 3 10
Furniture & Fittings 5 15

The asset lifes relating to buildings and dwellings are provide as part of the independent valution of the Trusts assets by
the external valuer.

The Trust leases two buildings which are used for medical education to Keele University. The following values within the
property, plant and equipment and expense disclosures relate to these buildings:

2017-18 2016-17
£000 £000
Gross carrying amount 14,002 14,128
Additions 0 9
Depreciation in period (415) (391)
Revaluation/(impairment) 2,208 256
Net Book Value 15,795 14,002
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Note 17 Inventories

Drugs
Work In progress
Consumables
Energy
Other

Total inventories

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000

4,514 4,231
8,047 8,973
121 94
12,682 13,298

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £157,111k (2016/17: £151,963k). Write-down of inventories

recognised as expenses for the year were £541k (2016/17: £47k).
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Note 18.1 Trade receivables and other receivables

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000
Current
Trade receivables 36,143 22,655
Accrued income 26,169 10,795
Provision for impaired receivables (3,003) (2,706)
Prepayments (non-PFl} 2,992 3,839
PDC dividend receivable 452 1,443
VAT receivable 3,187 1,791
Total current trade and other receivables 65,940 37,817
Non-current
Accrued income - 3,032
Total non-current trade and other receivables - 3,032

Of which receivables from NHS and DHSC group bodies:
Current 48,225 25,873

Non-current = 2
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Note 18.2 Provision for impairment of receivables

At 1 April as previously stated
Increase in provision
Amounts utilised
Unused amounts reversed

At 31 March

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000
2,706 4,355
647 2,123
(93) (30)
(257) (3,742)
3,003 2,706

The Trust reviews and provides where necessary for income invoices more than 180 days past the due date, for RTA
accruals at the prescribed rate of 22.84% (21.99% in 2016/17) and individually for any other debts which Trust
management has reason to believe the Trust may not receive. The Trust's management considers that this is a

reasonable estimate of the value of asset.

The increase or decrease in impairment of receivables is reviewed on a monthly basis and increased or decreased
dependent upon the value of receivables deemed to be potentially at risk of being collected in full by the Trust. The
Trust may go on to recover balances provided for at a future date and this is reflected within the amount recovered

during the year.

Note 18.3 Credit quality of financial assets

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Investments Investments
Trade and & Other Trade and & Other
other financial other financial
receivables assets receivables assets
Ageing of impaired financial assets £000 £000 £000 £000
0 - 30 days 64 - 73 -
30-60 Days 61 - 62 -
60-90 days 98 - 99 -
90- 180 days 77 - 48 -
Over 180 days 2,703 - 2,424 -
Total 3,003 - 2,706 -
Ageing of non-impaired financial assets past their due date
0-30 days - - - -
30-60 Days 1,480 - - -
60-90 days 4,801 - 4,596 -
90- 180 days 4,477 - 4,368 -
Over 180 days 3,099 - 343 -
Total 13,857 - 9,307 -

The great maijority of trade is with CCGs. As CCGs are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no

credit scoring of them is considered necessary.
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Note 19 Other assets

Current

EU emissions trading scheme allowance
Total other current assets

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000

B 247
- 247
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Note 20.1 Cash and cash equivalents movements

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily
convertible investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2017118 2016/17

£000 £000

At 1 April 13,566 10,043

Net change in year (920) 3,523

At 31 March 12,646 13,566
Broken down into:

Cash at commercial banks and in hand 6 6

Cash with the Government Banking Service 12,640 13,560

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 12,646 13,566

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SOCF 12,646 13,566

Note 20.2 Third party assets held by the trust

The trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the the Trust on behalf of patients or other
parties. This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

31 March 31 March

2018 2017

£000 £000

Bank balances 5 12
5 12

Total third party assets
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Note 21 Trade and other payables

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000
Current
Trade payables 21,284 18,831
Capital payables 3,446 13,642
Accruals 32,757 25,844
VAT payables - 121
Other taxes payable 222 9,220
Accrued interest on loans 1,364 20
Other payables 6,750 5,292
Total current trade and other payables 65,823 72,970

Included within other payables is £5,826,000 (£5,668,000 in 2016/17) in relation to outstanding pension contributions at
the year end.

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies:

Current 17,797 4,017
Non-current - -
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Note 22 Other liabilities

Current
Deferred income
Total other current liabilities

Non-current
Deferred income
Total other non-current liabilities

Note 23 Borrowings

Current
Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care
Other loans (SALIX)

Obligations under finance leases
Obligations under PF! contracts
Total current borrowings

Non-current
Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care
Other loans (SALIX)
Obiligations under finance leases
Obligations under PFI contracts
Total non-current borrowings

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000

5,988 5,267
5,988 5,267
8 217
8 217

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000

12,450 12,450
258 258
456 470

5,656 8,772
18,820 21,950
131,122 29,362
345 638
2,188 2,004
295,007 301,028
428,662 333,032
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Note 24 Finance leases

Note 24.1 University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust as a lessor
The Trust has no finance leases where it acts as lessor.

Note 24.2 University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust as a lessee
Obligations under finance leases where University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust is the lessee.

31 March 31 March

2018 2017

£000 £000

Gross lease liabilities 3,254 3,849
of which liabilities are due:

- not later than one year; 601 595

- later than one year and not later than five years; 2,151 2,417

- later than five years. 502 837

Finance charges allocated to future periods ~ (610) (1,375)

Net lease liabilities 2,644 2,474

of which payable:

- not later than one year; 456 470

- later than one year and not later than five years; 1,710 1,216

- later than five years. 478 788

The Trust has a finance lease for one building. The final repayment will be made in 2025.

The lease liability in the Trust's Statement of Financial Position is £1,153,000 split between £117,000 due in less than
one year and £1,036,000 due in more than one year. This liability represents the sum of the rental payments due in
respect of the property (£1,318,000) less the element deemed to be interest (£165,000) which is recognised as an

expense in the year that the payment is made.

The Trust has finance leases for pathology equipment and printers. The final repayments will be made in 2022.

The lease liability in the Trust's Statement of Financial Position is £1,491,000 split between £339,000 due in less than
one year and £1,152,000 due in more than one year. This liability represents the sum of the rental payments due in
respect of the equipment (£1,936,000) less the element deemed to be interest (£445,000) which is recognised as an

expense in the year that the payment is made.
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Note 25.2 Clinical negligence liabilities

At 31 March 2018, £206,167k was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of

University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust (31 March 2017: £190,748k).

Note 26 Contingent assets and liabilities

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000

Value of contingent liabilities
Other (131) (102)
Gross value of contingent liabilities (131) (102)
Net value of contingent liabilities (131) (102)

The amount above relates to to the member contingent liability relating to the excess due on clinical negligence cases

covered by the NHS Litigation Authority.

Note 27 Contractual capital commitments

31 March 31 March

2018 2017

£000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 480 1,738
Intangible assets 1,831 198
Total 2,311 1,936
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Note 28 On-SoFP PFI

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for inclusion in national statutory accounts

The Trust has commitments to two PF| schemes:

- The main scheme covering the redevelopment of the City General site, facilities management services, PACS

equipment, a managed equipment service and network and communications equipment

- A second scheme covering radiotherapy equipment

The Trust retains its existing estate at the City General site in addition to new buildings covered by the PFI scheme,

The main PFI contract ends in August 2044. A monthly unitary payment will be paid up to that point. Historically, bullet
payments have been made to reduce the monthly unitary payment. The unitary payment is subject to annual increases in
line with RPI. Services are subject to market testing every 7 years. The arrangement requires the operator to deliver
services to the Trust in accordance with the service delivery specification. Non delivery of quality or performance can lead
to a reduction in the service charge being paid by the Trust. The Trust retains step in rights should the contractor fail to
meet minimum standards as set out within the contract. Under IFRIC 12 the asset is treated as an asset of the trust. The
substance of the contract is that the trust has a financial lease and payments comprise 2 elements — imputed finance
lease charges and service charges. Details of the imputed finance lease charges are included within the table below.

The radiotherapy contract commenced in May 2010 and runs for 10 years. A bullet payment was made at the beginning
of the scheme. Monthly service payments are made to cover the cost of the equipment, maintenance and lifecycle costs.

Note 28.1 iImputed finance lease obligations

University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust has the following obligations in respect of the finance lease element of

on-Statement of Financial Position PF| schemes:

Gross PFI liabilities

Of which liabilities are due
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

Finance charges allocated to future periods

Net PFI obligation
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

Note 28.2 Total on-SoFP PFl commitments

Total future obligations under these on-SoFP schemes are as follows:

Total future payments committed in respect of the PFI arrangements

Of which liabilities are due:
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

£000 £000
419,120 436,279
13.474 16,826
67,813 64,417
337,833 355,036
(118,457) (126,479)
300,663 309,800
5,656 8,772
38,837 34,492
256,170 266,536

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

£000 £000
2,085,866 2,095,583
58,207 56,770
242,497 238,165
1,785,162 1,800,648

Of the total future committments £142,804,000 (2016/17 £145,979,000) are in relation to the lifecycle and equipment

elements of PFI schemes.
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The future obligations discloses the total payments the Trust is committed to paying in respect of the on SOFP PFI, the
future payments are inflated at the inflation rate included within the operators model. The actual payments may change

based on actual inflation.

Note 28.3 Analysis of amounts payable to service concession operator
This note provides an analysis of the trust's payments in 2017/18:

Unitary payment payable to service concession operator
Consisting of:
- Interest charge
- Repayment of finance lease liability
- Service element and other charges to operating expenditure
- Capital lifecycle maintenance
- Contingent rent

Total amount paid to service concession operator

201718 2016/17
£000 £000
58,331 58,279
8,068 8,834
9,254 9,392
31,237 31,813
2,923 2,322
6,849 5918
58,331 58,279
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Note 29 Financial instruments

Note 29.1 Financial risk management

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period
in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider
relationship that the NHS Trust has with CCG's and the way those CCG's are financed, the NHS Trust is not exposed to
the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in
creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly
apply. The NHS Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are
generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the NHS Trust in
undertaking its activities.

The Trust's treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined
formally within the Trust's standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors. Trust treasury
activity is subject to review by the Trust's internal auditors.

Currency risk

The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the
UK and sterling based. The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate
fluctuations.

Interest rate risk
The Trust may borrow from government for revenue financing subject to approval by NHS Improvement at rates set by
the Department of Health (the lender).

Credit risk

Because the majority of the Trust's revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low
exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2018 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed
in the trade and other receivables note

Liquidity risk
The Trust's operating costs are incurred under contracts with CCG's, which are financed from resources voted annually

by Parliament . The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudential borrowing limit. The
Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.
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Note 29.2 Carrying values of financial assets

Assets as per SoFP as at 31 March 2018

Trade and other receivables excluding non
financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand
Total at 31 March 2018

Assets as per SoFP as at 31 March 2017
Trade and other receivables excluding non
financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand
Total at 31 March 2017

Note 29.3 Carrying value of financial liabilities

Liabilities as per SoFP as at 31 March 2018

Assets at

fair value
Loans and through the Held to  Available- Total book
receivables I&E maturity at for-sale value
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
44,649 - - - 44,649
12,646 - - - 12,646
57,295 - - - 57,295

Assets at

fair value
Loans and through the Held to  Available- Total book
receivables I&E  maturity for-sale value
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
28,655 - - - 28,655
13,566 - - - 13,566
42,221 - - - 42,221

Liabilities at

Borrowings excluding finance lease and PFI liabilities

Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities

Total at 31 March 2018

Other fair value
financial through the Total book

liabilities 1&E value

£000 £000 £000
144,175 - 144,175
2,644 - 2,644
300,663 - 300,663
65,601 - 65,601
513,083 - 513,083
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Liabilities at
Other  fair value
financial through the Total book

liabilities I&E value
£000 £000 £000

Liabilities as per SoFP as at 31 March 2017
Borrowings excluding finance lease and PFl liabilities 42,708 - 42,708
Obligations under finance leases 2,474 - 2,474
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 309,800 - 309,800
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 63,447 - 63,447
Total at 31 March 2017 418,429 - 418,429

Note 29.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

IFRS 7 requires the Trust to disclose the fair value of financial liabilities. The PFI scheme is a non-current Financial
Liability where the fair value is likely to differ from the carrying value. The trust have reviewed the current interest rates
available on the market and if these were used as the implicit interest rate for the scheme the fair value of the liability
would be £299,389,000 (£308,555,000 in 2016/17).

Note 29.5 Maturity of financial liabilities
31 March 31 March

2018 2017

£000 £000

In one year or less 84,421 85,690
In more than one year but not more than two years 10,469 8,927
In more than two years but not more than five years 161,545 56,488
In more than five years 256,648 267,324
Total 513,083 418,429
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Note 30 Losses and special payments

Losses
Cash losses
Bad debts and claims abandoned
Stores losses and damage to property
Total losses
Special payments
Compensation under court order or legally binding
arbitration award

Ex-gratia payments
Total special payments
Total losses and special payments
Compensation payments received

2017/18 2016/17
Total Total

number of Total value number of Total value
cases of cases cases of cases
Number £000 Number £000
115 63 13 14
129 43 62 17

2 318 - -

246 424 75 31

- - 9 9

46 24 49 14

46 24 58 23

292 448 133 54
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Note 31 Related parties

The Trust's Register of Interests shows that a number of individuals employed or contracted by the Trust in roles of
significant influence are also employed or contracted in roles of significant influence by other organisations. The income
received relates mainly to the purchase by the UHNM Charity of equipment that enhances the service provided by the
Trust. For practical purposes these purchases are administered via the Trust's established ordering and payment
procedures with the UHNM Charity reimbursing the cost to the Trust. The charitable and other contributions to revenue
expenditure income disclosed in Note 4 relates to services provided by the Trust to the UHNM charity, i.e. the running of
the Appeals Dept. Details of related party transactions with such parties are detailed below:

NHS Providers
Keele University

Stoke on Trent College
Bolton Foundation NHS Trust

Alliance Medical

King's College

NHS Providers

Staffordshire University

Keele University

Nuffield Hospital

Mid Staffordshire Postgraduate Medical Centre (Education)
Capsticks Solicitors HR Advisory Practice

Stoke on Trent College

Payments
to Related
Party

£'000

19
3,433
48
58

Payments
to Related
Party

£'000

347
1

13
267

4,347
299
85

1

426

2017-18
Receipts Payables
from
Related
Party
£'000 £'000
1,683 338
2016-17
Receipts Payables
from
Related
Party
£'000 £'000
884 1
0 0
0 0
1 3
2,129 756
75 13
58 1
0 0
0 48

Receivables

£000

415

Receivables

£'000

147

374
19

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the Trust has had a significant number of
material transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent

Department, these are detailed below.

2017-18
Betsi Cadwaladr Uhb
Cheshire, Warrington And Wirral Area Team Dental Services

Cheshire, Warrington And Wirral Area Team Screening Services

Department of Health

Health Commission Wales

NHS Birmingham Cross City CCG
NHS Business Services Authority
NHS Cannock Chase CCG

NHS Dudley CCG

NHS East Staffordshire CCG
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG

2016-17

Betsi Cadwaladr Uhb
Cheshire, Warrington And Wirral Area Team Dental

Services

Cheshire, Warrington And Wirral Area Team Screening

Services

Department of Health

Health Commission Wales

NHS Birmingham Cross City CCG
NHS Business Services Authority
NHS Cannock Chase CCG

NHS Dudley CCG

NHS East Staffordshire CCG
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG
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NHS England Specialised

NHS Litigation Authority

NHS North Derbyshire CCG

NHS North Staffordshire CCG

NHS Redditch And Bromsgrove CCG

NHS Sandwell And West Birmingham CCG
NHS Shropshire CCG

NHS Solihull CCG

NHS South Cheshire CCG

NHS South East Staffs And Seisdon Peninsular CCG
NHS South Worcestershire CCG

NHS Southern Derbyshire CCG

NHS Stafford And Surrounds CCG

NHS Stoke On Trent CCG

NHS Telford And Wrekin CCG

NHS Vale Royal CCG

NHS Waisall CCG

NHS West Cheshire CCG

NHS Wolverhampton CCG

NHS Wyre Forest CCG

North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust

Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS Trust

Shropshire And Staffordshire Area Team Dental Services

Shropshire And Staffordshire Area Team Screening Services

Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Partnership NHS Trust

The Mid Cheshire NHS Foundation Trust
Virgin Care - East Staffs

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and

NHS England Specialised

NHS Litigation Authority

NHS North Derbyshire CCG

NHS North Staffordshire CCG

NHS Redditch And Bromsgrove CCG

NHS Sandwell And West Birmingham CCG
NHS Shropshire CCG

NHS Solihull CCG

NHS South Cheshire CCG

NHS South East Staffs & Seisdon Peninsular CCG
NHS South Worcestershire CCG

NHS Southern Derbyshire CCG

NHS Stafford And Surrounds CCG

NHS Stoke On Trent CCG

NHS Telford And Wrekin CCG

NHS Vale Royal CCG

NHS Walsall CCG

NHS West Cheshire CCG

NHS Wolverhampton CCG

NHS Wyre Forest CCG

North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust

Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS Trust

Shropshire And Staffordshire Area Team Dental Services

Shropshire And Staffordshire Area Team Screening
Services

Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Partnership NHS Trust

The Mid Cheshire NHS Foundation Trust
Virgin Care - East Staffs

local government bodies. The majority of these transactions have been with HM Revenue and Customs, National

insurance Fund and the NHS Pension scheme.

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from the UHNM Charity and all of the Trustees are also
members of the Trust board. In 2017-18 the total amount received from the UHNM Charity was £1,936,970 (2016-17:
£2,205,821). At the end of the year £1,165,922 (2016-17: £562,425) was outstanding and is included within trade and

other receivables.

Note 32 Events after the reporting date

The Trust has not identified any major events that required disclosure.
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Note 33 Better Payment Practice code

201718 2017118 201617 2016/17
Number £000 Number £000
Non-NHS Payables
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 128,930 383,834 154,781 385,988
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 104,319 332,834 134,607 345,092
Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within
target 80.9% 86.7% 87.0% 89.4%
NHS Payables
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 2,766 30,457 3,674 41,369
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 1,619 22,417 2,215 26,623
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 58.5% 73.6% 60.3% 64.4%

The Better Payment Practice code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30
days of receipt of valid invoice, whichever is later.

Note 34 External financing
The trust is given an external financing limit against which it is permitted to underspend:

2017/18 201617
£000 £000
External financing limit (EFL) 103,245 45,894
Cash flow financing (from SoCF) 93,730 42,783
Finance leases taken out in year - 1,915
Other capital receipts - (7)
External financing requirement 93,730 44,691
Under / (over) spend against EFL 9,515 1,203
Note 35 Capital Resource Limit
2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000
Gross capital expenditure 18,934 50,923
Less: Disposals (64) (86)
Less: Donated and granted capital additions (594) (452)
Plus: Loss on disposal of donated/granted assets 5 -
Charge against Capital Resource Limit 18,276 50,385
Capital Resource Limit 20,132 51,861
Under / (over) spend against CRL 1,856 1,476
Note 36 Breakeven duty financial performance
2017/18
£000
Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit)
(control total basis) (71,325)
CAQLUIIN Risk Reserve - 1617 CT non achievement
adjustment 1,608

Breakeven duty financial performance surplus / (deficit) (69,717)
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2017-18 Annual Accounts of University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust

STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE
ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER OF THE TRUST

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the
NHS Trust Development Authority, has designated that the Chief Executive should be
the Accountable Officer of the trust. The relevant responsibilities of Accountable
Officers are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum. These
include ensuring that:

- there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and
assets and assist in the implementation of corporate governance;

- value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;

- the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them;

- effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and
- annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and

the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the
responsibilities set out in my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.

Slgned‘l%&QQvaw-*QPaula Clark - Chief Executive

Date..85.:.9.:.0%...-
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
ACCOUNTS

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare
accounts for each financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of HM
Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the trust and of the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash
flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, the directors are required to:

- apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State
with the approval of the Treasury;

- make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the trust and to enable
them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above
mentioned direction of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the accounts.

By order of the Board
'M&Q.Q.&%Q ............ Date.R%:.5...1&......Paula Clark - Chief Executive
e e Date. 233 1 € Helen Ashley Chief Officer for

Finance & Performance






Independent auditor's report to the Directors of University Hospitals of
North Midlands NHS Trust

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of University Flospitals of North Midlands NHS T'rust (the ‘Trust))
for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the
Accounts, including Accounting policies and other information. The financial repotting framewotk that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Depattment of Health and Social Care Group
Accounting Manual 2017-18 and the requitements of the National Health Service Act 2006.

In our opinion the financial statements:

® give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trust as at 31 March 2018 and of its expenditure
and ihcome for the year then ended; and

® have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union, as interptreted and adapted by the Department of Health and Social Care
Group Accounting Manual 2017-18; and

® have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Service Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standatrds on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are furthet described in the Auditot’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our teport. We are independent of the Trust in accordance
with the ethical requitements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC’s Ethical Standatd, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requitements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Who we are reporting to

This repott 1s made solely to the Directors of the Trust, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust's
Directors those matters we ate required to state to them in an auditot’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept ot assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust
and the Trust's Directors, as a body, for our audit wotk, for this repott, or for the opinions we have formed.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 1.1.2 in the financial statements, which indicates that the T'rust’s financial
petformance in 2017/18 was a deficit of £69.717 million during the year ended 31 March 2018 against a
budgeted deficit of £68.933 million. This is made up of the adjusted financial performance deficit of £71.325
million less the CQUIN Risk Reserve of £1.608 million. The Trust also received cash suppott for its revenue
position of £143.6 million. As stated in note 1.1.2, the Trust’s financial plan for 2018/19 forecasts the delivery
of a further deficit of £44.8 million necessitating further revenue cash botrowing using the Department of
Health and Social Cate’s Uncommitted Single Cutrency Interim Revenue Support Facility Agteement. The
Ditectors ate seeking additional support from NHS Improvement in 2018/19 of £44.8 million. NHS
Improvement has not, at this point, confirmed this suppott fot the full amount, These events ot conditions,
along with the other matters explained in note 1.1.2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt about the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.



Other information

The Directors ate responsible for the othet information. The othet information comptises the information
included in the Annual Repott set out on pages 1 to 58, other than the financial statements and out auditor’s
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
theteon.

In connection with out audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to tead the othet information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements ot
our knowledge obtained in the course of our work including that gained through wotk in relation to the Trust’s
arrangements for securing value for money through economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its
resources of otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether thete is a tnaterial misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to reportt in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit
Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and
Auditor Genetal (the Code of Audit Practice) we are requited to consider whether the Annual Governance
Statement does not comply with the guidance issued by NHS Improvement ot is misleading or inconsistent
with the information of which we ate aware from our audit. We ate not requited to consider whether the
Annual Governance Statement addtesses all risks and controls or that risks ate satisfactorily addressed by
internal conttrols.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion:

® the parts of the Remuneration Report and Staff Report to be audited have been propetly prepated in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as intetpreted and adapted by the Depattment
of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2017-18 and the requirements of the National Health
Service Act 2006; and

® based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge of
the Trust gained through our work in relation to the Trust’s arrangements for secuting economy, efficiency
and cffectiveness in its use of resoutces, the other information published together with the financial
statements in the Annual Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice we ate required to tepott to you if:

® we have reported a matter in the public interest under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

® we have referred a matter to the Secretary of State under Section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 because we had reason to believe that the Trust, ot an officer of the Trust, was about to make, or
had made, a decision which involved ot would involve the body incurting unlawful expenditure, or was
about to take, ot had begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be
unlawful and likely to cause a loss ot deficiency; ot

e we have made a written recommendation to the Trust under Section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2011 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.



We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters except on 22 May 2017 we refetred a matter to the
Secretary of State undet section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in relation to the Trust’s
breach of its three year break-even duty for the three year period ending 31 March 2016 and its ongoing breach
for subsequent years including the year ended 31 March 2018.

Responsibilities of the Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the financial
statements

As explained mote fully in the Statement of Ditector's Responsibilities set out on page 64, the Ditectors are
responsible for the prepatation of the financial statements in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts
Directions, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intetnal conttrol as the Ditectots
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matetial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directots ate responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Trust lacks funding for its continued existence ot when policy decisions have been
made that affect the services provided by the Trust.

The Audit Committee i1s Those Chatged with Governance.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whethet the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accotdance with ISAs (UK) will always detect 2 matetial misstatetnent when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and ate considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of usets taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditot’s repott.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Conclusion on the Trust’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources

Adverse conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General in
November 2017, because of the significance of the matters desctibed in the basis for adverse conclusion
section of our report we are not satisfied that, in all significant respects, University Hospitals of North
Midlands NHS Trust put in place proper arrangements for secuting economny, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Basis for adverse conclusion

Our review of the Trust's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of

resources identified the following mattets:

® The Ttust deliveted a deficit of £69.717 million in 2017/18, made up of the adjusted financial performance
deficit of £71.325 million less the CQUIN Risk Resetve of £1.608 million, against a budgeted deficit of
£68.933 million.

¢ The Trust’s cumulative financial deficit has increased from £67.115 million at 31 Match 2017 to £136.832
million at 31 March 2018.

e The Ttust has set a deficit budget of £44.800 million for 2018/19 and, at the date of out report, has not
agreed a control total for 2018/19 with NHS Improvement.

® The Trust is seeking revenue suppott from the Department of Health and Social Cate in 2018/19 to fund
its ongoing deficits.



These matters identify weaknesses in the Trust's arrangements for setting a sustainable budget with sufficient
capacity to absorb emerging cost pressures due to the current configuration of services.

These issues are evidence of weaknesses in proper arrangements for sustainable resoutce deployment in
planning finances effectively to suppott the sustainable delivery of strategic ptiorities and maintain statutory
functions.

Responsihilities of the Accountable Officer

As explained in the Statement of the Chief Executive’s Responsibilities, as the Accountable Officer of the
Trust, the Accountable Officer is responsible for putting in place proper atrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the Trust's resoutces.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 21(3)(c) and Schedule 13 paragraph 10(a) of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Trust has made proper arrangements for secuting economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resoutces and to repott whete we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that it has
done so. We ate not requited to considet, not have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resoutces are operating
effectively.

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having tegard to the guidance
on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to whether in
all significant respects, the Trust had propet arrangements to ensure it took propetly informed decisions and
deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The
Comptrollet and Auditor General determined this ctiterion as that necessaty for us to considet under the Code
of Audit Practice in satisfying outselves whether the Trust put in place propet atrangetnents for secuting
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resoutces for the year ended 31 March 2018, and to repott
by exception whete we ate not satisfied.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we
undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Trust has put in place propet
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resoutces.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of University Hospitals of North
Midlands NHS T'rust in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and
the Code of Audit Practice.

J D Roberts

Jon Roberts
Partner
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP

2 Glass Whatf

Bristol
BS2 OEL

25 May 2018
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Year ended 31 March 2018

TRUST ACCOUNTS CONSOLIDATION (TAC) SUMMARISATION
SCHEDULES FOR THE UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF NORTH
MIDLANDS NHS TRUST

Summarisation schedules numbers TACO1 to TAC34 and accompanying WGA sheets
for 2017/18 have been completed and this certificate accompanies them.

Finance Director Certificate

1. Icertify that the attached TAC schedules have been compiled and are in
accordance with:
« the financial records maintained by the NHS trust
» accounting standards and policies which comply with the Department  of
Health and Social Care’s Group Accounting Manual and
» the template accounting policies for NHS trusts issued by NHS Improvement,
or any deviation from these policies has been fully explained in the
Confirmation questions in the TAC schedules.

2 I certify that the TAC schedules are internally consistent and that there are no
validation errors.

3: I certify that the information in the TAC schedules is consistent with the
financial statements of the NHS Trust.

Finance & Performance

Chief Executive Certificate

1. T'acknowledge the attached TAC schedules, which have been prepared and
certified by the Finance Director, as the TAC schedules which the Trust is
required to submit to NHS Improvement.

2. T'have reviewed the schedules and agree the statements made by the Director of
Finance above.

..-.-I-g--;-oo-g‘o----.--.-..--u-- maan

cevvenrereen. Datte 28..5.:.1€. Paula Clark - Chief Executive






INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S STATEMENT TO THE DIRECTORS OF
UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF NORTH MIDLANDS NHS TRUST ON
THE NHS TRUST CONSOLIDATION SCHEDULES

We have examined the consolidation schedules designated TAC02 to TAC29 for tables
outlined in red, excluding TACO5A and TAC23 of University Hospitals of North Midlands
NHS Trust for the year ended 31 March 2018, which have been prepared by the Director of
Finance and acknowledged by the Chief Executive.

This statement is made solely to the Board of Directors of University Hospitals of North
Midlands NHS Trust in accordance with Part 5 paragraph 20(5) of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and paragraph 4.2 of the Code of Audit Practice. Our work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Accountable Officer those matters we are required
to state to them in a consistency statement and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust
and the Accountable Officer as a body, for our audit work, for this statement, or for the
opinions we have formed.

For the purpose of this statement, reviewing the consistency of figures between the audited
financial statements and the consoldiation schedules extends only to those figures within the
consolidation schedules which are also included in the audited financial statements. Auditors
are required to report on any differences over £300,000 between the audited financial
statements and the consolidation schedules.

Unqualified audit opinion on the audited financial statements; no differences
identified:

The figures reported in the consolidation schedules are consistent with the audited financial
statements, on which we have issued an unqualified opinion.

Jon Roberts
Partner
For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor

The Colmore Building
20 Colmore Circus
Birmingham

B4 6AT

25 May 2018
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